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TWZ would like to express our appreciation to
all shareholders, valued customers, business
partners, management, all staff and other
related parties for supporting the Company.
These supports have assisted us in achieving
sound operating performances, growing at a
healthy rate, and successfully overcoming
obstacles. TWZ believes that with the Company’s
strong determination on continuous
development on all aspects, proper risk
management and strict adherent to good
corporate governance will enable the Company

to achieve the sustainable growth. , ?
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Financial Highlights

Financial Performance

Total Assets

Total Liabilities

Shareholders’ Equity

Sales and Services
Revenues

Total Revenues

Gross Profit

Net Profit

Financial Performance

Gross Profit Margin (%)
Net Profit Margin (%)
Returns on Equity (%)
Refurns on Assets (%)
Debt to Equity (Times)
Eamings per share (Baht)
Dividend per share (Baht)

Book Value per share (Baht)

Remark *

consolidated financial statements shall present only consolidated Income statement, statement of change

2009
Consolidated”

3,564
3,647
406
143

2009
Consolidated”
11.39
3.92

Company
2,278
1,567

711

3,559
3,656
405
143

Company
11.39
3.90

2008
Consolidated
1,940
1,348
592

3,251
3,334
220
15

2008
Consolidated
7.45
0.45
2.49
0.80

2.28
0.01
0.02
0.25

Company
1,950

1,358

592

3,243
3,326
249
33

Company
7.87
1.00
5.61
1.80
2.28
0.01
0.02
0.25

2007
Consolidated
1,812
1,200
613

4,414
4,567
310
95

2007
Consolidated
7.32

in shareholders’ equities and cash flow statement for year ended on December 31, 2009.

ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Company
1,754

1,159

595

3,696
3,868
212

Company
5.72

1.99

13.00

5.19

1.96

0.03

0.03

Since the Company’s subsidiary was registered for liquidation on December 11, 2009, the Company’s

AILINIT ANVAWOD DI19Nd NOILVIOdYOD ZML

85



Total Revenues Unit : Million Baht
. Consolidated Company
5,000
4,567
4,000 3,647 3,656 . 3,868
— 3,334 3,326 .
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TWZ would like to express our appreciation to
all shareholders, valued customers, business
partners, management, all staff and other
related parties for supporting the Company.
These supports have assisted us in achieving
sound operating performances, growing at a
healthy rate, and successfully overcoming
obstacles. TWZ believes that with the Company’s
strong determination on continuous
development on all aspects, proper risk
management and strict adherent to good
corporate governance will enable the Company

to achieve the sustainable growth. , ?
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Message from the Board of Directors

In year 2009, Thailond was affected from the global economic crisis. Such situation resulted in an
increase in the cautiousness on the consumers spending. Therefore, TWZ Corporation Public Company
Limited has adjusted its marketing strategies to cope with the economic condition. As a result, the sales
and services revenues of the Company and its subsidiary increased from Baht 3,251.39 million in 2008 to

Baht 3,563.59 million in 2009, or grew at 9.60% and the net profit was at Baht 143.05 million.

Realization of the importance of the development and strengthening its competitiveness, the
Company has developed management and administration procedures to ensure its customers to be
confident on its products and services under its brandnames “TWZ” and “NOKTEL” including other
products and services distributed by the Company. Due to the rapid change of the economic condition,
the Company has to incorporate cautious risk management in order to support the sound operation and

maximize the efficiency. Such actions will enable the Company to maintain its growth.

TWZ would like to express our appreciation to all shareholders, valued customers, business partners,
management, all staff and other related parties for supporting the Company. These supports have
assisted us in achieving sound operating performances, growing at a healthy rate, and successfully
overcoming obstacles. TWZ believes that with the Company’s strong determination on continuous
development on all aspects, proper risk management and sfrict adherent to good corporate

governance will enable the Company to achieve the sustainable growth.

i . . -
WA ST e P
e R fb’
(Mr. Adul Udol) (Mr. Puttachart Rungkasiri)
Chairman Chairman of Executive Committee
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Board of Directors

CORPORATION

1. Mr. Adul

2. Mr. Puttachart

3. Mr. Singh

4. Police Lieutenant
5. Mrs. Tippakorn

6. Miss Kaikae

7. Mrs. Wiwan

8. General Surapan
9. Mrs. Santana

48 2 3
5 5 |7 9
Udol Chairman
Rungkasiri Vice Chairman
Tangtaswas Independent Director

General Aek
Rungkasiri
Cherdvisavapan
Boonyaprateeprat
Poomkaew

Ratanaphichetchai

Angsananont Independent Director

Director

Director

Independent Director and Chairman of Audit Committee
Independent Director and Member of Audit Committee

Independent Director and Member of Audit Committee
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Management Team

Mr. Puttachart Rungkasiri
Managing Director
Acting Vice President-Managing Director Office

Mr. Nithichai Chuenman
Vice President-Accounting Department
Acting Vice President-Planning

and Business Development Department

Miss Chadaporn Amornviputpanich

Vice President-Finance Department

Mr. Kittipong Kittipassorn
Vice President-Product

Management Department

Mr. Sakol Pawitranon
Vice President-Sales Department 2

Acting Vice President-Sales Department 1
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Directors and Management Team

Name Mr. Adul Udol

Position
Shareholding
Education

Working Experience

llegal Record in the past
10 years

Chairman
None
Degree

Program

Director

Mar 2005-Present
2001-2002
1999-2000
1996-1998
1989-1995
1989-1995
1989-1995
1989-1995
1989-1995

None

Bachelor of Mechanical Engineering (2™ Class Honor)
Chulalongkormn University

Chairman 2000 Program

Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD)
Accreditation Program (DAP) Class 41/2005

Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD)

Chairman of TWZ Corporation Plc.

Chairman of Krung Thai IBJ Leasing Co., Ltd.
Executive Director of Krung Thai Bank Plc.

Advisor of Siam Cement Plc.

Assistant Vice President of Siam Cement Plc.
Managing Director of Siam Kraft Industry Co., Ltd.
Managing Director of Thai Kraft Paper Industry Co., Ltd.
Managing Director of Thai Union Paper Co., Ltd.
Managing Director of Thai Paper Co., Ltd.

Name Mr. Puttachart Rungkasiri

Position
Shareholding

Education
Chulalongkorn University

Working Experience

llegal Record in the past
10 years

Vice Chairman, Managing Director and Acting Vice President-

Managing Director Office

32.00%
Degree

Program

1993-Present
Feb 2009-Present

2007-2009
2003-2004
2004-2007
2001-Present
1999-2007
1992-Present
1991-2009
None

Bachelor of Accounting and Commerce,

Director Accreditation Program (DAP) Class 41/2005

Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD)

Vice Chairman and Managing Director of TWZ Corporation Plc.
Acting Vice President-Managing Director Office of

TWZ Corporation Plc.

Managing Director of Sam Corporation Co., Ltd.
Chairman of Telewiz club

Managing Director of F-One Subaru (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
Managing Director of F-One Auto Sport Co., Ltd.
Managing Director of TWZ Telecom Co., Ltd.

Director of PC Cellular Co., Ltd.

Director of Piyachart Co., Ltd.
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Name Mr. Singh Tangtaswas

Independent Director

Position
Shareholding
Education

Working Experience

llegal Record in the past
10 years

None

Degree

Program

Aug 2005-Present
2006-Present

2004-Present

2004-Present

2002-2009

1999-2001
1988-Present
1988-Present
1996-1999
None

MBA (Finance and Banking)

Wharton School of Finance and Commerce

University of Pennsylvania

Director Certification Program (DCP) Class 0/2000

Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD)

Independent Director of TWZ Corporation PIc.

Managing Director and Chairman of the Risk

Management Committee of Bangkok Bank Plc.
Independent Director and Chairman of the

Audit Committee of Thai Optical Group Plc.

Director, Chairman of the Board, Remuneration

Committee and Nomination Committee of Bangkok
Insurance Plc.

Adviser, Corporate Govermnance Center of the Stock Exchange
of Thailand (SET)

President and Chief Executive Officer of Krung Thai Bank Plc
Director of Kanchanadhat Co.,Ltd.

Director of Burapa Tarin Co.,Ltd.

President of The Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET)

Name Police Lieutenant General Aek Angsanano

Independent Director

Position
Shareholding
Education

Working Experience

llegal Record in the past
10 years
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None
Degree
Program

Apr 2009-Present
2009 -Present

2009- Present
2008- Present
2008-Present
2008- Present

None

Master of Law, Chulalongkorn University

Director Certification Program (DCP) Class 111/2008

Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD)

Independent Director of TWZ Corporation PIc.

Honorable Committee, Small and Medium Enterprises
Promotion Committee

Committee, Government Pension Fund

Committee, Property Management Office, Thai Red Cross Society
Honorable Committee, Ramkhamhaeng University Councll
Committee, The Customs Committee on Setting the Case and
Waiving Prosecution, Thai Customs Department



Name Mrs. Tippakorn Rungkasiri

Position Director
Shareholding 0.84%
Education Degree Doctor of Education (Ed.D) in Educational Technology,
Kasetsart University
MA (Intfemnational Management) University of London, UK
MBA, Marketing, Chulalongkorn University
Program Director Certification Program (DCP) Class 63/2005 and
Director Accreditation Program (DAP) Class 39/2005
Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD)
Working Experience Mar 2005-Present  Director of TWZ Corporation Plc.
2003-Present Assistant Dean for Administration & Instructor of Marketing,
Faculty of Commerce and Accountancy,
Chulalongkorn University
2002-2003 Assistant Vice President of Premier Group
llegal Record in the past None
10 years
Position Director
Shareholding 1.88%
Education Degree MBA, University of Dallas, USA
Program Director Accreditation Program (DAP) Class 43/2005
Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD)
Working Experience Mar 2005-Present  Director of TWZ Corporation Plc.
1994-Present Director of Southern Palm Qil Industry (1993) Co., Ltd.
llegal Record in the past None
10 years
Position Chairman of Audit Committee
Shareholding None
Education Degree Master of Political Science, International Relationship,
Florida State University, USA
Program Director Accreditation Program (DAP) Class 13/2004
Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD)
Working Experience Mar 2005-Present  Chairman of Audit Committee of TWZ Corporation Plc.
1995-Present Chairman of Executive Committee of Southern Palm
Oll Industry (1993) Co., Ltd.
1995-Present Chairman of Executive Committee of

Suratthani Green Energy Co., Ltd.

1995-Present Chairman of Executive Committee of Natura One Co., Ltd.
1995-Present Chairman Executive Committee of Green To Energy Co., Ltd.
llegal Record in the past None

10 years
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Name General Surapan Poomkaew
Position Audit Committee
Shareholding None
Education Degree Doctor of Philosophy in Public Administration
Ramkhamhaeng University
Program Capital Market Academy Leadership Program,
Capital Market Academy (CMA) Class 9
Working Experience Apr 2009-Present  Audit Committee of TWZ Corporation Plc.
2007-2008 Deference Inspector General
2005-2007 Commanding General of Armed Forces
Development Command
2003-2005 Special Expertise of the Royal Thai Armey
llegal Record in the past None
10 years
Position Audit Committee
Shareholding None
Education Degree Master of Accounting The University of Texas at Austin, USA
Program Director Accreditation Program (DAP) Class 13/2004 and
Audit Committee Program (ACP) Class 9/2005
Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD)
Working Experience Mar 2005-Present  Audit Committee of TWZ Corporation Plc.
1999-Present Professor, Accounting and Commerce Faculty,
Thammasat University
llegal Record in the past None
10 years
Position Vice President - Finance Department
Shareholding None
Education Degree MBA (Finance)
California State University, USA
Working Experience 2006-Present Vice President - Finance Department of TWZ Corporation Plc.
2005-2006 Vice President - Finance Department of Alan Dick
(Thailand) Co., Ltd.
2004-2005 Vice President - Administrative and Finance Department of
TWZ Corporation PIc.
2002-2004 Financial Advisor of Institute for Small and Medium Enterprises
Development
llegal Record in the past None
10 years
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Name

Mr. Nithichai Chuenman

Position

Shareholding
Education
Working Experience

llegal Record in the past

10 years

Name

Vice President - Accounting Department and Acting Vice President-
Planning and Business Development Department

None
Degree
Feb 2004-Present

Feb 2009-Present
2003- Feb 2004
2001-2003

1999-2001
None

Executive MBA, Burapha University

Vice President-Accounting Department of

TWZ Corporation PIc.

Acting Vice President-Planning and Business Development
Department of TWZ Corporation Plc.

Accountfing and Finance Manager of

The Silom Medical Co., Ltd.

Audit Supervisor of S.K. Accountant Services Co., Ltd.
Assistant Auditor of A M C Office Co., Ltd.

Mr. Sakol Pawitranon

Position
Shareholding
Education

Working Experience

llegal Record in the past

10 years

Name

Vice President-Sales Department 2 and Acting Vice President-Sales Department 1

None

Degree
University

Feb 2009-Present
Oct 2009-Present
2006-Feb 2009

2003-2005
1992-2002
None

Bachelor of Business Administration (Marketing), Assumption

Vice President-Sales Department 2 of TWZ Corporation Plc.
Acting Vice President-Sales Department 1 of TWZ Corporation Plc.
Assistant Vice President-Sales and After Sales Services
Department of TWZ Corporation PIc.

Sales Manager of Winwave Co., Ltd.

Sales Manager of P.C. Cellular Co., Ltd.

Position
Shareholding
Education

Working Experience

llegal Record in the past

10 years

Mr. Kittipong Kittipassorn

Vice President-Product Management Department

None
Degree

Oct 2009-Present

Feb 2009-Oct 2009
2006-Feb 2009

2004-2006
2001-2004
1999-2001
None

Bachelor of Aviation Engineer (Communication),

Civil Aviation Institution (Thailand)

Vice President-Product Management Department

of TWZ Corporation Plc.

Vice President-Sales Department 1 of TWZ Corporation Plc.
Assistant Vice President-Marketing and Business Development
Department of TWZ Corporation Plc.

General Manager of SIS DISTRIBUTION (THAILAND) PCL.
Deputy Managing Director of THIRD WAVE EDUCATION CO.,LTD.
Managing Director and Partner of DECO DISTRIBUTION.,LTD.
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General Information

Name

Nature of Business

Head Office

Registration No.

Home Page

Telephone No.

Fascimile No.

Paid-up capital

Share Registrar

Auditor

TWZ Corporation Public Company Limited

Core business is a distrioutor of telecommunication devices which are

mobile phones, SIM cards, pre-paid cards, and accessories.

18/1 TWZ Building Thetsaban-Songkhro Road, Ladyao, Chatuchak,

Bangkok

0107574800285

www.twz.co.th

(66) 2954-3333

(66) 2954-3398

Baht 240,000,000

Thailand Securities Depository Company Limited,
62 Rachadapisek Road, Kloengtoey, Bangkok 10110
Telephone (66) 2299-2800

Fascimile (66) 2359-1262

Miss Wanraya Puttasatiean

CPA No. 4387
S.K. Accountant Services Company Limited

128/150-153 Phayatai Plaza Building, 14th Floor, Phayatai Road,

Thongphayatai, Ratchatavee, Bangkok 10400
Telephone (66) 2214-6464
Fascimile (66) 2215-4772
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Nature of Business

TWZ Corporation Public Company Limited (“the Company” or “TWZ”), previously named “PC
Communication and Transports Company Limited.”, was established by mobile phone distribution experts,
Mr. Pufttachart Rungkasiri, the first mobile phone distributor to open retail shop at MBK center, with the
initial paid up capital of Baht 1.00 mililon on December 22, 1993. On January 19, 2007, the Company
established a subsidiary, Sam Corporation Co., Ltd. (“the subsidiary”) with the initial paid up capital of
Baht 20.00 million and the Company hold 99.99% of its total capital. The subsidiary was appointed as the
sole distributor of mobile phone under trademark “Samsung” from Thai Sumsung Electrics Co., Ltd.
However, on September 18, 2007, the subsidiary submitted the lefter o terminate the sole distributor
agreement with Thai Samsung Electronics Co., Ltd. Therefore, the subsidiary was registered for liquidation
on December 11, 2010.

The Company’s main business is selling mobile phone, SIM card and refilled card for Digital GSM
Advance and Digital GSM 1800 and other ftelecommunication devices. The Company was granted
Telewiz franchise from Advance Info Service Plc. (“AlS”) for seling goods and services under the
tfrademark “Telewiz” for 22 branches and “Telewiz Express” for 4 branches. Besides, the Company was
granted franchise for Service Dealer Center from Wireless Device Supply Company Limited under the
frade mark “Mobile from Advance” for its 4 Telewiz branches.

At present, the Company is the distributor of mobile phones “TWZ” and “NOKTEL”. The Company
has imported such products from China to distribute under its own brand names. The consumer
acceptance in products from China is increasing as the products are cheaper and provide various
functions that can serve consumers’ requirements. Therefore, the sales of TWZ and NOKTEL are consistently
increasing. Besides, in order to have various mobile phones and accessories to serve all customers’
needs, the Company is also the dealer of Wireless Device Supply Company Limited, M-Link Asia
Corporation Public Company Limited, United Distribution Business Company Limited as well as purchases
from other local distributors since each distributor is granted exclusive right for specific models and
brands. Since the Company is both distributor and dealer of various brands of mobile phones, it has
variety of products to response to all consumers’ demand.

The Company has seen the opportunity in the real estate development business, therefore, on
March 11, 2008, the Company entered into the leasehold right contract with the State Railway of
Thailond on Rachadapisek Road for the area of 4,126 square meters at the total value of Baht 88.30
million to construct Home Office building. Such site is at the good location as it is close to the
MRT-Ratchadapisek station. The leasehold right contract is for 24 years. The site of the leasehold is on
the good location; therefore, the Company expects the real estate project will bring more income and
profit to the Company. At present, the real estate project is under construction according tfo its
approved floor plan. The Company expects the project will be completed in year 2012.

As the Company’s business has been grown dramatically, it has to increase its paid-up capital
consistently to support its business. Therefore, the Company increased its paid-up capital fromm Baht 1.00
million to Baht 30.00 million, Baht 120.00 million and Baht 180.00 million in 2002-2004 respectively. Besides, in
order to support its business expansion in the future, the Company increased its capital fromn Baht 180.00
million to Baht 240.00 million in 2005 by issuing 60 milion shares, af par value Baht 1.00 per share,
and allocated 59 million shares to public and 1 million shares to its directors and employees. The Stock
Exchange of Thailand (“SET”) granted the Company’s common shares to be traded on the SET
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commencing on 18 November 2005 under Information and Communication Technology Sector of the
Technology Industry, using “TWZ” as abbreviated name for trading. To be listed in the SET is one of the
Company’s successes as it enhances its reliability, strengthens its financial performance which make the
Company be more competitive in the industry. In order to increase the liquidity of its common shares, the
Extraordinary General Meeting of shareholders No. 1/2008 on June 20, 2008 approved the Company to
change its common share par value from Baht 1.00 per share to Baht 0.10 per share. Therefore, the
Company’s registered share capital was changed from the registered share capital of Baht 240.00 million,
divided info 240 million shares at par value of Baht 1.00 per share to the registered share capital of Baht
240.00 million, divided into 2,400 million shares at par value of Baht 0.10 per share. The Company registered

it new par value at the Ministry of Commerce on June 30, 2008.

On February 26, 2010, the Board of Directors meeting no. 1/2010 approved the issuance of 600
million units of warrants for its existing shareholders according to their shareholding portions at the ratio of
4 common shares for 1 unit of warrant at the exercise price of Baht 0.90 per share and approved the
increase of the Company’s registered capital by Baht 60.00 million, which 600 milion common shares
hall be issued at par value of Baht 0.10 per share to reserve for the exercise of such warrants. The
Company’s registered capital shall increase from Baht 240.00 million to Baht 300.00 million, consists of 3,000
million shares at par value of Baht 0.10 per share. Such agendas will propose to the Annual General
Meeting No. 1/2010 which will be held on April 22, 2010 for the approval further.

At present, the Company has total 3¢ branches, 22 Telewiz Shops, 4 Telewiz Express, 9 TWZ Shops

and 1 Nokia Shop.

TELEWIZ 1. Room 333/1, 3 fl., Central Plaza Pinklao 12. Room 2121B, G fl, SCB Park Plaza West Tower
2. Room 305, 3 fl., Central Plaza Rama Il 13. Room 3033, 3° fl., Fashion Island
3. 1" fl, Tesco Lotus Chaengwattana 14. Room 509A, 5" fl., Central City Bangna
4. 2" fl, Tesco Lotus Sukhumwit 50 15. Basement, Big C Supercenter Bangna
5. 2™ fl., Tesco Lotus Laksi 16. Room A1, 5" fl., Central City Bangna
6. 1 fl, Tesco Lotus Rattanatibet 17. Room 441/2, 4™ fl., Central Ploza Pinklao
7. 2" fl, Tesco Lotus Rama |l 18. Kasetsart University, Ngamwongwan Car Parking Building 1
8. 2™ fl, Tesco Lotus Bangna-Trad 19. Room 225, 2" fl., Central Plaza Rama |l
9. 1" fl, Tesco Lotus Srinakarin 20. Room L007/1, 2™ fl., Shinawatra Tower 3
g 10. Room 309/1, 3 fl., Central Ploza Ramaindra  21. Room E12, G fl. Central Choengwattana Ploza
*E’ 11. Room 336/3, 3 fl., All Srason Complex 22. Room GCRB109, Big C Supercenter Bangpli
E TELEWIZ EXPRESS 1. Room A115,122,126 Bonmache Market 3. 39 fl, Tesco Lotus Pinklao
"% 2. Room F1/10, Carrefour Rama Il 4. 1" fl., Home Pro Bangna
% TWZ SHOP 1. Room 3054D, 3 fl., Fashion Island 6. 2% fl. Comcosa Building, Konkaen
% 2. Room B144, G fl., Central Plaza Ladprao 7. 4" fl, MBK Center
% 3. Room 244, 2™ fl., Central Plaza Ladprao 8. Room 320, 3° fl, Central Chiangmai Plaza
zé 4. Room A-16, 1% fl., Laksi Plaza 9. Room 341/2, 3 fl., Central Plaza Plinklao
2% 5. Room K-C 401, 4™ fl., Central World

NOKIA SHOP 1. Room 52B, 5" fl., Central City Bangna
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Revenues Structure
The Company and its subsidiary’s revenues structures for year 2007-2009 were as follows:

2009 2008 2007

Type of revenue Million Million Million A

Baht Baht Baht

Sales revenues

- Handsets 2,711.94  74.36 = 2,925.43  87.75 | 3,886.10  85.10
- Accessories 37.39 1.03 57.51 1.72 32.43 0.71
- SIM card and Refilled card 794.07 21.77 251.45 7.54 482.25 10.56
Total Sales 3,543.40 97.16 3,234.39 97.01 4,400.78 96.37

Services revenues

- From Service Center 1.76 0.05 0.28 0.01 0.18 0.01
- Services fees ' 18.43 0.50 16.72 0.50 12.99 0.28
Total Services revenues 20.19 0.55 17.00 0.51 13.17 0.29
Total Sales and Services revenues 3,563.59 97.71 3,251.39 97.52 4,413.95 96.66
Sales promotion 2 76.11 2.09 64.00 1.92 128.86 2.82
Other revenues " 7.30 0.20 18.50 0.56 23.75 0.52
Total Revenues 3,647.00 100.00 3,333.89 100.00 4,566.56 100.00
Remark: " Service fees consist of AIS commission online fees, counter service fees, etc.

¥ Sales promotions are revenues paid by mobile phone manufacturers and the operator for their promotions

and when the Company’s sales volume reach their targets and for support the distribution as well as revenue
sharing from AIS for TWZ’s corporate customers.

Other revenues consist of profit from exchange rate, interest income, gain from disposal asset, etc.

Business Goal

The Company has set its business goal to enhance its sales and services revenues consistently
by emphasizing on the profitability and the increase of its distribution channels especially at the prime
locations where consumers in such community have purchasing power and the places are convenience
for using the services, not only the increase in number of various shops such as TWZ Shop, Telewiz
Express and Telewiz Shop, but also the increase in number of dealers as well as distribution channels in
Modern Trade, in order to access more target customers. The Company has improved ifs service standard
to be more satisfied by customers and be competitive to other players. Besides, the Company will build
up to be partner with additional well-known mobile phone manufacturers and distributors as well as
import more mobile phones from China to distribute under its own brand names in order to be able to

obtain quality products with various specifications to serve different customers’ needs.
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Industry and Competition

In year 2009, Thai economy faced a number of challenges such as the uncertainty of the local
political situation and the aggressive recession in the United States economy which enabled the global
economy to be in the downturn as well. Such situation caused the increase of the cautiousness of the
consumers spending. However, Thai government and other countries’ government have been proceeded
according to the economic stimulus package. As a result, their economics have progressively recovered.

During the end of year 2009, economic and consumer confidence were improved continually.

There was a fierce competition in Telecom Industry in 2009. The mobile phone service operators
compete among themselves with pricing, services as well as technology development in order to satisfy
customers’ demands. Though, the expansion of customer base was decreasing as the market was quite
saturated, the operators still be able to find out new strategies to attract the customers to change their
mobile phone numbers by providing promotions as well as value added services for the new subscriber
in order to expand the customer base. In 2009, there were 65.29 million subscribers or equivalent to the
penetration rate of 97.35%, increased by 4.50 million subscribers from 2008. The operators have to develop
new networks and technologies as well as adjust new strategies in order to serve customer’s need rapidly
and increase customers’ satisfaction. The operators have to maintain their existing customers as well as

try to increase new customer base.

The distribution of felecommunication devices industry in 2009 was affected by the slowing down
of the economy as well as the fierce competition among the distributors, especially pricing which
affect directly to customers’ decision. The mobile distributors, therefore, try to search for the low cost
products. The new mobile phone users are decreasing while the replacement users are increasing as the
users need mobile phone with convergence or smart phone functions including the design of mobile
phone. In which such mobile phone should be capable to support both pictures and voice data and
the picture will no longer tremble as the bandwidth will be increased so we can watch television
through mobile phone comfortably and there will be other services to provide convenience for the users.
The development of new fechnology is not only to increase customers’ conveniences but also to
stimulate the customers’ decision to change their phones. In 2010, the TV Mobile, 2 SIM mobile and
Business Entertainment Mobile will be very attractive for the replacement market. The new mobile
phone market will be based on the pricing and distribution to the upcountry in order to increase

customer base expansion.

The major players in the mobile phone distribution industry can be divided in 4 groups as follows:
1.  Affiliated Dealer of Mobile Phone Service Operator
The 4 major mobile phone service operators in Thailand distribute their mobile phones, SIM
cards, pre-paid cards and accessories through their affiliated shops which are shops managed by
the operators themselves as well as shops under their franchising systems. These shops have clear
and systematic management, affer sales services and marketing strategies which determined by
the mobile phone service operators. As the dealers have good relationship with the operators,
they always get useful news and information for supporting their sales and services. Besides, they

always have been supported for their business operations and marketing promotions which
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enable them to be reliable and trusted by the customers. The distribution channels of each

operator are as follows:
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Operator Name of Shop No. of shops managed No. of shops
by the Operator under franchising
AlS ! Telewiz - More than 630 More than 630
DTAC DTAC Shop 31 290 321
True Move " True Move Shop 59 - 59
Hutch 7 HUTCH 34 - 34

Remark /' Information from Form 56-1 as at December 31, 2008 of Advance Info Service Plc.

2 Information from Form 56-1 as at December 31, 2008 of Total Access Communications Plc.
”* Information from www.fruemove.com as at March 18, 2010

*" Information from www.hutch.co.th as at March 18, 2010

2. Distributor / Dealer
The enfrepreneurs in this group are appointed directly by foreign mobile phone

manufacturers. Their main focuses are selling mobile phone for wholesale. Pricing and marketing
policies are jointly determined between manufacturer and the distributor. The entrepreneurs in
this group are:
> International Engineering Public Company Limited

M-Link Asia Corporation Public Company Limited

Samart i-mobile Public Company Limited

A2 2

Loxley Public Company Limited

The distributors purchase mobile phones directly from the manufacturers and sell through
their dealers or general retail stores. The fierce competition in mobile phone industry presently has
forced the distributors to improve their distribution strategies by operating their own retail stores in

order to maintain their market shares and most of retfail stores are operated under franchise

agreement.
Distributor Shop No. Of Shops
International Engineering Public Company Limited " Mobile Easy 225
(Shop : 35, Counter : 190)

M-Link Asia Corporation Public Company Limited /? M Shop 107

Samart I-mobile Public Company Limited ** i — Mobile Shop 50
fg Remark /" Information from www.mobileeasy.co.th as at March 18, 2010
% 2 Information from www.m-shop.co.th as at March 18, 2010
R ”* Information from www.i-mobilephone.com as at March 18, 2010
&
2 3. Dealer with its own retail shop / retail chain store
ﬁ The entrepreneurs in this group are directly appointed as dealer by the foreign mobile phone
E manufacturer but focusing on selling through their own retail shops and selling points. Besides, they
f=}
é purchase from other distributors for some specific brands/ models in order to have variety of
é products at their own shops to serve all farget group of customers while sell some of their products
;% to other distributors also. The players of this group understand customers’ needs and behaviors as
)

they have to contact directly with both manufacturers and customers which enable them to be

more adaptable to the fast change of the industry. The players of this group are:
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Distributor Shop No. Of Shops
Jay mart Public Company Limited " Jay - Mart 190
Bliss-Tel Public Company Limited ’* Bliss@Tel 214

(Shop : 98, Counter : 116)

Remark /' Information from www.jaymarts.com as at March 18, 2010

2 Information from www.blisstel.com as at March 18, 2010

4.  Retail Store
These retail stores employ small amount of investment and there is no management system
and after sales services. The owner of the shop deals with customer himself, thus, the price
is negotiable. The competition among the players in this group is only focusing on the price.

Therefore, the credibility of this group is less than others.

The mobile phone industry is sfill consistently aggressive both the competition among the
mobile phone service operators as well as among mobile phone distributors. All mobile phone
service operators employ various marketing strategies such as air-fime charge reduction, providing
more services in order to maintain and increase their market shares. For the competition among
mobile phone distributors, the unlocking of mobile phone operation code in 2002 drastically
affected the mobile phone industry as the distributors were able to purchase from any sources,
not required to purchase from the operator like in the past. Meanwhile, the mobile phone
manufacturers changed their policies to appoint more distributors / dealers to increase their
market shares. Besides, various mobile phone distributors imported mobile phone from China to sell
under their house brands in order to increase their profitability by focusing low price mobile phone

for the low purchasing power customers who prefer low price product.

The total market volumes of mobile phone handsets in 2009 were 8.4-8.5 million units
(estimated by the Company). Most of the purchasers were replacement users more than first
mobile users as the replacement users have behavior to change their mobile phones every ¢-12
months due to the consistent change in fechnology as well as new model launch with additional
specification at not high price. Besides, all the operators arrange a lot of promotion activities such
as providing special services in order to attract more customers. Thus, there are some customers
want to change their mobile phones in order to be able to exploit such special services provided
by the operators. At present, the distributors have changed their marketing strategies from pricing
as the major factor to stimulate sales to focus on selling mobile phone to the replacement users
by tfrying to change the customers’ attitudes from mobile phone as a contact device to be a
variety device which enable the customers to change their mobile phone faster. At present,

the growth rate of the replacement market is higher than first mobile phone user market.

With regard to the market trend of mobile phone in year 2010, Kasikorn Research Center
has estimated that the sales of mobile phone handsets will be around 9.5-10.0 million units, or grow
at 11.5-17.5% from year 2009. The high growth product should be smart phone which has more
qudlifications than normal mobile phone such as internet connection, download application for
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various programs, computer connection, etc. (Source : Business Brief from Kasikorn Research
Center, Year 1¢, Issue No.2744, Dated on January 28, 2010)
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Key success factors of mobile phone distributors are capability in product selection and
differentiation for both quality and price to serve customers’ needs, one stop service with quality,

covered distribufion channels as well as the efficient management.

Competitive Advantages
TWZ has competitive advantages as the Company plays a major role in 3 groups in mobile

phone distribution industry which are:

1. The Company is affiliated dealer of the major mobile phone operator, AlS, by granted
franchising to open 22 Telewiz branches and 4 Telewiz Express branches. TWZ has most Telewiz
shops in Thailand. Moreover, the Company was granted various rewards for its great selling
and services performances from AlS more than 10 years which enable the Company to have
good relationship and always get strong support from AlS.

2. The Company is the distributor of mobile phones “TWZ” and “NOKTEL” which the Company
has imported such products from China to distribute under its own brand names. Such
products are cheaper and provide various functions and they can serve all consumers’
requirements. Besides, the Company is also the dealer of Wireless Device Supply Company
Limited, M-Link Asia Corporation Public Company Limited and United Distribution Business
Company Limited. The Company also purchases from other distributors in Thailand. Therefore,
the Company has variety of products and also be able to control cost more efficiency.

3. The Company has its own retail shops which are 9 TWZ Shops and 1 Nokia Shop all located

at prime areas.

Besides, The Company has more than 500 dealers around country and has a high quality one
stop service center to support all the Company’s products. Therefore, the Company’s products are
more acceptable and more reliable from customers. With the Company’s distribution channels,
image, marketing strategies, services and efficient management enable the Company to have

competitive advantages against other players.
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Risk Factors

1.  Risk associated with the termination of franchise contract with Advance Info Service Plc.

The Company granted Telewiz franchise from Advance Info Service Plc. (“AlS”) which could
be terminated if any events that violate the terms and conditions of the contract occur or either
party may terminate this contract by giving written notice 60 days prior the termination date to the
other party. At present, there are 26 Telewiz shops (Telewiz 22 branches and Telewiz Express 4
branches) under TWZ management. Revenues from Telewiz Shops were 14.26% and 8.07% of total
revenues in 2008-2009, respectively. Therefore, the revenues of the Company might decrease if the
confract is terminated. Due to the prime locations of the Company’s Telewiz shops, the Company
is able to operate these shops in form of TWZ shop if the termination of confract occurs. In addition,
as 84.22% of TWZ’s total revenues are wholesale; the contract termination is not much effect to the

Company’s performance.

The Company’s business consistently supports AlS’s business as it sells only SIM card and
refiled card of AIS network. Though, the Company sells/purchases mobile phone and accessories
from other mobile phone manufacturers, distributors and/or other dealers except for AlS’s affiliated
as well as opens mobile phone shops in other names such as TWZ Shop, Nokia Shop as informed
to AIS, the above businesses always help increase sales of SIM card and refilled card of AIS
network. Besides, Telewiz shops under the Company’s management have been granted rewards
more than 10 years. The Company has most Telewiz shops in Thailand. Therefore, the management
believes that there is a minimal chance that the contract will be terminated and the Company’s

business will be consistently supported by AIS.

2. Risk from selling SIM card and refilled card for a sole mobile phone operator
At present, the Company sells only SIM Card of Digital GSM Advance, Digital GSM 1800 and
1-2-Calll which are products of AIS. Revenues from SIM Card and Refilled card were around
21.77% of total revenues in year 2009, therefore, the Company might have risk from depending on
only one operator from the competition among other mobile phone operators such as Total
Access Communications Plc., True Move Company Limited or other new operators which might

effect AlS’s market share and effect the Company’s sales eventually.

AlS is the largest operator in Thailand with subscription market share of 43% in year 2009
(information as of December 31, 2010 from Advance Info Service Plc excluding the subscription of
TOT-3G and HUTCH). Furthermore, AIS always has investments on network expansion, sales
promotion and public relation which enable AIS to maintain as well as increase its market share
which also help to boost the Company’s SIM card, 1-2-Calll Product and refiled card sales.

Therefore, the Company is confident to contfinue to do the business with this mobile operator.

3.  Risk from depending on major distributors
Each distributor obtains the exclusive right to sell specific products/ models, therefore, to

have variety of products, the Company has to purchase from various distributors. However, the
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decision to purchase from any distributor depends on the popularity of the products/ models of

each period, discount and other sales promotions provided by each distributor such as number of

mobile phones to be allocated.
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The Company realizes the risk from depending on major distributors; therefore, the Company
still maintains its relationship with other suppliers by diversifying its purchase to other distributors.
Besides, the Company is the distributor of its own brand names “TWZ” and “NOKTEL”. As a result,
the Company has up-to-date products which can serve customers’ needs as well as decrease

the dependence from major distributors.

4.  Risk from Foreign Exchange Rate
In 2009, the Company imported some mobile phones and accessories by paying in U.S. Dollar
(USD) at the amount of USD 20.98 million or 21.80% of fotal purchasing value, thus, the Company
might have the currency exchange risk as all revenues are in Thai bath. The Company has a policy
to purchase forward contract to cover the exposure of foreign purchasing based on the situation

as well as the appropriateness.

5.  Risk from product obsolescence
Mobile phone is the fast-paced technological change product, thus, the manufacturer has
to consistently develop new models to serve customers’ need. Therefore, the Company might
encounter problems with the inventory management for the out of dated models which the

Company could not sell and eventually has to decrease the price to compete with hew models.

As the Company’s management is in the mobile phone distribution industry more than 15
years, they understand thoroughly of the mobile phone industry. They realize the importance of
carefully product selection of each brand/model to sell. Moreover, the Company consistently
surveys opinions and needs of both distributors and dealers. Meanwhile, the Company obtains
information about the new mobile phone model, new technology of mobile phone from
well-known mobile phone manufacturers who appointed the Company’s to be their distributors
which enable the Company to be able to select products that are needed. Besides, the Company
has the efficient inventory management by establishing inventory online system which linked to all
the Company’s branches in order to be able to check each branch’s stock. The Company also
has distribution channels through its dealers; therefore, the Company can sell the products very
fast before they are out-of-dated. Moreover, if its mobile phone manufacturers as well as major

distributors who appoint the Company to be their dealers decrease their selling prices in order to

::g be competitive in the market, the Company will be compensated the price change of each
§ model in accordance with the condition that agreed with those manufactures and/or distributors.
£

2 6.  Risk from competition

:—’f The fast growing of mobile phone and accessory distribution business as well as the
g importance change of the mobile phone industry in the early of year 2002 which was the IMEI
= unlocked, therefore, mobile phone can be purchased from any sources, not only from operators.
;g Thus, there are new players, who mostly are small retailers, parficipating in mobile phone business
2% which will increase the competition especially the price competition in the industry.

=

108 s1goauUs:zdalU 2552



The Company is the dffiliated dealer of AIS who is the largest mobile phone operator, has
various products to serve customers and has covered distribution channels as all the Company’s
retail shops located at the prime area over Bangkok and has more than 500 dealers over the
country. Besides, the Company has quality one-stop service centers, which are able to support all
the Company’s products and enable the Company to make consistently services revenues. As the
Company’s management understands thoroughly about the mobile phone industry as well as the
customers’ needs, they are able to solve all the problems very quickly. Due to the above reasons,

the Company believes that it is ready and capable to compete with other players in the industry.

Risk associated with the rental contracts

The Company distributes its products to its retail customers via its 36 retail shops located in
department stores and super centers; therefore, the Company has to rent the shop area both short
term and long term. The Company may have risk of expiration of rental confracts or change in

conditions that cause more expenses.

As at December 31, 2009, the Company has 5 long-term contracts for 5-25 years, thus, there
is no risk to extend these contracts. The remaining 31 contracts are short-term confracts (not more
than 3 years); therefore, there is risk for contract extension in the future. However, as the Company
is the good business partner with the area owner as well as has long-term business relationship

more than 10 years, the probability of this risk is considered low.

Risk from major shareholders who hold more than 50% of the Company’s shares.

As at March 19, 2010, a major shareholder of the Company is Rungkasiri group who is the
founder of the Company and held 60.00% of the Company’s shares. Therefore, they have enough
votes to control shareholder’'s meetings for all resolutions that required majority vote except for the
resolutions under laws and its article of association which required 3 in 4 of shareholders’ vote.
Other shareholders may not be able to gather votes to recheck and oppose for any major

shareholders’ proposal.

Risk from depending on executives who are major shareholders of the Company.

The Company was established by Mr. Pufttachart Rungkasiri who is mobile phone and
accessories industry expert and has strong relationship with manufacturers and distributors more
than 15 years. According to above reason, the Company has a risk from depending on such
executive, however, Rungkasiri group still hold 60.00% of the Company’s shares which is sufficient
to motivate him to continue manage the Company. Besides, the Company has policy to promote
the teamwork management and to recruit professionals to manage the Company by emphasizing
on the efficiency and the development of the Company. Besides, the Company has set the clear

responsibility and duty of each position in its authority table.
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Shareholders and Management

List of fop 10 major shareholders as of the book closing date on March 19, 20710.

Name of Shareholders No. of shares %

1. Rungkasiri Group

1. Mr. Puttachart Rungkasiri 768,000,000 32
2. Mrs. Piyanuj Rungkasiri 612,000,000 25.5
3. Rear Admiral Sathien Rungkasiri 20,000,000 0.83
4. Captain Apa Rungkasiri 20,000,000 0.83
5. Mrs. Tippakorn Rungkasiri 20,000,000 0.84
2. Thai NVDR Company Limited 137,176,000 5.72
3. Mr. Supichai Nawarattanasiri 90,097,100 3.75
4. Mr. Aftawut Paichai 80,874,200 3.37
5. Mr. Sippapas Dusitanon 55,100,000 2.3
6. Miss Rossarin Chuenjit 52,025,000 2.17
7. THE BANK OF NEW YORK (NOMINEES) LIMITED 51,000,000 2.13
8.  Mr. Bundal Udol 50,000,000 2.08
9. Mr. Sarath Raftanawadee 46,190,800 1.92
10. Miss Kaikae Cherdvisavapan 45,000,000 1.88

Dividend Policy

The Company’s dividend payout policy is at a minimum of 40% of net profit after tax and legal
reserve. However, the Board of Directors has the power not to follow the policy or change the policy
occasionally under the condition that it has to maximize the benefit of the shareholders such as have to
reserve for loan repayment or business expansion or in case that there are any changes of the market

conditions which may affect the Company’s cash flows in the future.
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Management Structure
The Company’s director’s structure comprises of 3 groups of directors, which are Board of Director,

Executive Committee and Audit Committee. The details are as follows:

(1) Board of Directors
As at December 31, 2009, the Company’s Board of Directors consists of 9 persons as shown in

the list as follows:

1. Mr. Adul Udol Chairman

2. Mr. Puttachart Rungkasiri Vice Chairman

3. Mr. Singh Tangtaswas Independent Director

4. Police Lieutenant General Aek Angsananont Independent Director

5. Mrs. Tippakorn Rungkasiri Director

6. Miss Kaikae Cherdvisavapan Director

7. Mrs. Wiwan Boonyaprateeprat  Independent Director and Chairman

of Audit Committee

8. General Surapan Poomkaew Independent Director and Member
of Audit Committee

9. Mrs. Santana Ratanaphichetchai  Independent Director and Member
of Audit Committee

Mr. Nithichai Chuenman is the secretary of Company and the secretary of the Board of Directors.

Authorized Directors

The authorized directors are Mr. Puttachart Rungkasiri jointly with Miss Kaikae Cherdvisavapan
or Mrs. Tippakorn Rungkasiril, totally two authorized persons, to sign on behalf of the Company with
the Company’s seal affixed.

Scope of Authority and Duty of the Board of Directors

1. To honestly manage the Company in accordance with the laws, objectives and articles of
associations as well as resolutions of Shareholders’ Meeting and to take precautions in order
to protect the Company’s benefits.

2. To authorize an appointment a set of directors as Executive Committee to execute one or
several tasks in order to implement the work assigned by the Board of Directors as well as
to authorize an appointfment the Chairman of Executfive Committee together with other
committee such as Audit Commifttee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee as
deemed appropriate.

3. To determine business goal, guideline, policy, plan and budget of the Company and monitor
and ensure that the administration of the Executive Committee or the assighed person shall
be according to the policy that set by the Board of Directors.

AILINIT ANVAWOD D11dNd NOILVIOdIOD ZML

4. To consider, review and approve the policy, direction, strategy, business plan, annual budget,
expenditure budget and project investment that proposed by the Executive Committee

5. To consistently follow up the performance according to the policy and budget that have
been set

6. To consider and approve other related material matters or any appropriate actions that

benefit to the Company.
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Except for the following tasks which can be implemented only obtain the approvals
from Shareholders’ Meeting. Any directors or related persons who might be involved with
either conflict of interest transaction or beneficial conflict transaction with the Company or
its subsidiaries shall not be granted the right fo vote in that matter.

(a) Matters stipulated by Laws must be obtained the resolutions from Shareholders’

Meeting.

(b)  Transactions that any directors are involved with either conflict of interest or any other
beneficial conflicts particularly stated by the Laws or regulations of the Stock Exchange
of Thailand must be obtained the resolutions from Shareholders’ Meeting.

The executfion of the following matters must be approved by the Board of Directors
and the Shareholders’ Meeting with the votes not less than 3 over 4 of total votes of the
eligible shareholders present in the meeting.

(a) To sale or transfer all or major parts of the Company’s business.

(b) To purchase or acquire of other company or other private company

(c) To make, amend or ferminate the confract related to the rent of all or some major
parts of the Company’s business. The appointment of other person who will manage
the Company’s business or the merging with other person in order to share profit
and loss.

(d) To amend the Memorandum of Associations or the Articles of Associations.

(e) To increase or decrease capital, to issue debenture, to merge or to terminate the
business.

(2) Executive Committee

As at December 31, 2009, the Company’s Executive Committee comprised of 3 persons

as follows:
1. Mr. Puttachart Rungkasiri Chairman of Executive Committee
2. Mrs. Tippakorn Rungkasiri Executive Committee
3. Miss Kaikae Cherdvisavapan Executive Committee

Scope of Authority and Duty of the Executive Committee
The Executive Committee is assigned by the Board of Directors to be authorized to perform

§ the following tasks for the Company.

é 1. To honestly manage the Company in accordance with the laws, objectives, articles of
& associations, resolutions of Shareholders’ Meeting and resolutions of the Board of Directors’
"% Meeting and to take precaution to protect the Company’s benefits.

x?’z 2. To determine organization structure, authority tfable and to ensure the coverage of details in
Z terms of selection, training, recruitment, reshuffle and dismissal of the Company’s personnel.
E 3. To plan and determine the business plan, business strafegies and annual budget and
;é propose to the Board of Directors for approval. Also, to consider and approve the allocation
Z% of annual budget, to amend, adjust, or increase annual expense budget in case of urgent
)

needs and present to the Board of Directors accordingly.
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4. To audit and monitor the Company’s business operation, policy, and administrative guidance
in a manner that is compatible to business situation.

5. To audit and to monitor in order to ensure that the company is operated in accordance
with the approved business plans.

6. To authorize and approve the following financial implementations:

(1)  The Executive Committee is entitled to approve unlimited financial amount in case
that such implementation is stated in the business plan or annual budget.

(2)  If not stated in documents mentioned in (1), the Executive Committee is entitled to
approve an amount not exceeding Baht 40 million. Such approval shall include the
approval on the expense occurred from general operations, investment on capital
assets or fixed assets, borrowing, obtaining credit line including provision of guarantee,

etc. and inform the Board of Directors for the acknowledgement accordingly.

7. To implement other tasks as periodically instructed by the Board of Directors.
Such assignment will not entitle the Chairman of the Executive Committee or the Executive
Committee to approve on any matters that might be conflicts of interest to themselves or other

party or matters that may cause any beneficial conflict whatsoever with the Company.

(3) The Audit Committee

As at December 31, 2009, the Company’s Audit Committee comprised of 3 persons as follows:

1. Mrs. Wiwan Boonyaprateeprat Chairman of Audit Committee
2. General Surapan  Poomkaew Audit Committee
3. Mrs. Santana Ratanaphichetchai Audit Committee

(Has knowledge and experience in

financial statements review)

Scope of Authority and Duty of the Audit Committee

1. To ensure that the Company has accurately and adequately disclosed its financial
statements to public by cooperating with auditor and in charge executives to prepare
financial reports quarterly and annually by reviewing the financial statements, related
financial reports, accounting policy, accounting standard, the existence of the Company,
the major change in accounting policy as well as the management’s opinion on the
accounting policy determination prior to present to the Board of Directors and eventually
disclose to shareholders and general investors. The Audit Committee may suggest the auditor
tfo examine or investigate any matters considered fo be necessary and important during
the auditing period.

2. To ensure that there are suitable and effective internal contfrol and auditing system in the
company by co-uditing with external auditor and internal auditor (if any). To determine and
review the Company’s audit plan and to evaluate the audit result with the auditor and
internal auditor (if any) regarding any problems or limitations arise during the financial
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statements auditing. To determine and control on the electronic data processing as well as
the security of the information in order to protect the fraud or misuse the computer by the

Company’s employees or external persons.
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3. To ensure that the company is operated in accordance with Laws governing Securities and
Exchange, the regulations of the Stock exchange of Thailand and the laws pertaining to the
business of the Company.
4. To select and make suggestions regarding the appointment of the Company’s auditor
tfogether with the audit fee by taking info consideration the credibility, personnel sufficiency,
work load of auditing firm as well as experience of the personnel to be appointed as the
Company’s auditor.
5. To consider and approve any connected fransaction and/or any acquisition or disposal of
the Company’s assets as well as consider the disclosure of the information should there be
any connected transactions or any conflict of interest transactions to be accurate and
complete. In addition, to approve such transactions in order to propose to Board of Directors’
meeting and/or shareholders’ meeting as stipulated under the laws or related regulations of
the Stock Exchange of Thailand.
6. To conduct other tasks as instructed by the Board of Directors and/or agreed by the Audit
Committee, i.e. o make revisions on financial policies and risk management, make revisions
on compliance with business ethics, make co - revisions with the Company’s directors on
important issues which need to be disclosed to public as stated by laws, for instance, report
and analysis of the management team.
7. To prepare the Audit Committee report by disclosing on the Company’s annual report. The
report shall be signed by the Chairman of Audit Committee and should contfain following
information:
> Comments on the preparation process and disclosure of information in the Company’s
financial statements regarding the accuracy and reliability.

> Comments on the sufficiency of the Company’s internal control system.

> Reasons to believe that the Company’s auditor is appropriate to be re-appointed for
another ferm.

> Comments on the complionce with Laws governing Securities and Exchange, the
regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand and the laws related to the Company’s
business.

> Report on other matters that shareholders and investors should be concerned within a
scope of duties and responsibilities appointed by the Board of Directors.

8. To evaluate the Audit Committee’s performance.

2 9. To perform any matters, which stipulated under the laws governing Securities and Exchange
% and/or regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand.
2
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(4)

Executives

As at December 31, 2009, the Company’s executives comprised of 5 persons as follows:

Mr.Puttachart Rungkasiri Managing Director
Acting Vice President-Managing Director Office
MissChadaporn Amornviputpanich Vice President-Finance Department
Mr.Nithichai Chuenman Vice President-Accounting Department
Acting Vice President-Planning and Business
Development Department
Mr.Sakon Pawitranon Vice President-Sales Department 2
Acting Vice President-Sales Department 1

Mr.Kittipong Kittipassorn Vice President-Product Management Department

Scope of Authority and Duty of the Managing Director

1. To manage and supervise general administration of the Company.

2. To perform as assigned by the Board of Directors in accordance with the Company’s
regulations and articles of associations.

3. To have the power to employ, transfer, remove, expel, determine wage rates, give gratuities
and rewards, raise salaries, considerations, and bonuses for all employees except the
execufives.

4. To authorize an approval on the overall purchase and the expenditure which not exceeding
Baht 30 million on general matters as stated in the Company’s Authority Table.

5. To authorize the issuance of instructions, regulations, announcements, memorandums so that
the Company is operated in compliance with the policy and for the Company’s interest as
well as for the discipline of the organization.

6. To have the power to represent the Company to deal with external individual for any related

business that is useful to the Company.

7. To have the power to appoint advisor in various fields that are necessary for the Company’s
business.

8. To implement other tasks as periodically instructed by the Board of Directors or the Executive
Committee.

Managing Director is not entitfled to approve any matters that might be a conflict of
interest fransaction or conflicts to related party or may cause any beneficial conflicts whatsoever

with the Company or subsidiaries.

Selection of the directors
The directors shall be elected by shareholders’ meeting as at the shareholders’ meeting
will select the directors under the procedures stated in the Company’s articles of associations

that can be summarized as follows:
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1. The Board of Directors consists of at least 5 persons wherein the directors not less than half of
the number of fotal directors must be domiciled in the Kingdom and they shall have
qualifications as provided by law.

2. The Shareholders’ meeting shall elect directors in accordance with the criteria and

procedures as follows:

a. Each shareholder shall have one vote per one share.
b. Shareholders shall vote to elect each individual director.
C. The candidates shall be ranked in order descending from the highest number of votes

received o the lowest, and shall be appointed as directors in that order until all of the
directors positions are filled. Where the votes case for candidates in descending
order are fied, which would otherwise cause the number of directors to be exceed,
the chairman of the meeting shall make the final decision.

3. At every annual general meetfing, one-third of the directors shall retire. If the number of
directors is not a multiple of three, the number of directors closest to one-third shall refire. The
directors that must retire from office within the first and second year after the listed of the
Company shall be selected by casting lofs. In subsequent years, the director who has held
office longest shall retire. The directors who retire from the position may be re-elected.

4. Any directors who want to resign from the office have to submit the resignation letter to the
Company and shall be effective on the date the resignation letter reached the Company.

5. The shareholders’ meeting may pass a resolution removing any director from office prior to
retirement as a result of the expiration of the director’s tferm of office, by a vote of not less
than three quarters of the number of shareholders attending the meeting who have the
right fo vote and who have shares totaling not less than half of the number of shares held

by the shareholders attending the meeting and having the right to vote.

Selection of independence directors

The Company’s Board of Directors shall consider the preliminary qualifications of the persons
to be elected as the independence directors by considering according to the qualifications as
stated in the Public Limited Companies Acts, the laws governing Securities and Exchange as well
as all related announcements, objectives and/or related regulations. The Board of Directors shall

consider selecting the independence directors who are capable, experienced and appropriate in

s

§ all aspects and then propose to the shareholders’ meeting for appointment as the Company’s
=2

= Board of directors accordingly.

; The definition of the independence of the Company’s director is complied with the
=}

é regulations of the Notification of the Capital Market Supervisory which are as follows:

§ 1. Holding shares not more than 1% of the fotal shares with voting rights of the Company,
§ its subsidiaries, which shall be inclusive of the shares held by related persons.

‘% 2. Not being or having previously been a director who fakes part in management, an
2 employee, a staff member or advisor who receives a regular salary, or a controlling person
Z% of the Company, its subsidiaries unless the termination of being in such position had occurred

at least 2 years before an appointment as the Company’s independent director.
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3. Not being a person related by blood or registration under laws in the form of fatherhood,
motherhood, spouse, sibling and child as well as child’s spouse, of its executives, ifs major
shareholders, its controlling persons or such other persons who wil be nominated to be
executives or controlling persons of the Company or ifs subsidiaries.

4. Having no current or previous business relationship with the Company, its subsidiaries, it major
shareholders or its controlling persons which may interfere his /her independent discretion,
and not being or having previously been a major shareholder or controlling person of the
company which has a business relationship with the Company, its subsidiaries, its major
shareholders or its controlling persons, unless the termination of being in such position had
occurred at least 2 years before the appointment as the Company’s independent director.

5. Not being or having previously been an auditor of the Company, its subsidiaries, its major
shareholders or its controlling persons and not being a major shareholder or partner of the
audit office of the auditor of the Company, its subsidiaries, its major shareholders or its
controlling persons unless the termination of being in such position had occurred at least
2 years before the appointment as the Company’s independent director.

6. Not being of having previously been any professional service provider including legal advisor
or financial advisor who receives more than 2 million baht annually from the Company, its
subsidiaries, its major shareholders or ifs controlling persons and not being a major share-
holder, controlling person or partner of such professional service provider unless the termina-
fion of being in such position had occurred at least 2 years before the appointment as the
Company’s independent director.

7. Not being a director appointed as a representative of the Company’s directors, major
shareholder or a shareholder who is related to the Company’s major shareholder.

8. Not operating any business which has the same nature and significant in competition with
the Company, its subsidiaries or not being a major shareholder in partnership or a director
who takes part in the management, an employee, a staff member or advisor who receives
a regular salary or holding shares more than 1% of total shares with voting rights of other
company who operates same business and significantly competes with the Company and
its subsidiaries.

9. Having no characteristics that may affect the giving of independent opinions on the

operation of the Company and its subsidiaries.

Selection of Audit Committee

The Board of Directors shall appoint at least 3 audit commiftees from independence directors
who have qudlifications according to the law governing Securities and Exchange including all
related announcement, regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand regarding the qualifications
and scope of duties of the Audit Committee. Besides, at least one of the Audit Committee has to

have financial and accounting knowledge. The office term of each committee is 2 years.
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Monetary Remuneration

Remuneration of Directors and Executives

Board of Directors’ Remuneration

of each director were as follows:

The Company’s Board of Directors comprised of 11 persons in 2009, the remunerations

*** Retired on April 23, 2009

= million per year.
2
5
- Executives’ Remuneration
=
@
-2
@
@
=
N
@
<
1=}
2 Salar
a y
(<o}
3 Bonus
k<)
=
Others
5
E Total
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Executives’ remunerations in 2009 and 2008 were as follows:

2007

Total (Baht)

5 8,160,000
5 912,500
9,072,500

** Appointed at the Annual General Meeting No. 1/2009 on April 24, 2009

Position Remuneration® No. of Attendances
(Baht) Regular  Additional
1. Mr. Adul Udol Chairman 600,000 3/4 4/4
2. Mr. Puftachart Rungkasiri Vice Chairman 525,000 4/4 4/4
3. Mr. Singh Tangtaswas Independent Director 420,000 4/4 4/4
4. Police Lieutenant General
Aek Angsananont ** Independent Director 260,000 2/4 4/4

5. Mrs. Tippakorn Rungkasiri Director 420,000 4/4 4/4
6. Miss Kaikae Cherdvisavapan Director 400,000 4/4 3/4
7. Mr. Bundal Udol *** Director 140,000 1/4 1/4
8. Mrs.Wiwan Boonyaprateeprat Independent Director and Chairman

of Audit Committee 640,000 1/4 3/4
9. Mr. Bhoom Wongrajit *** Independent Director and Member

of Audit Committee 180,000 1/4 1/4
10. General Surapan Poomkaew ** Independent Director and Member

of Audit Committee 340,000 3/4 3/4
11. Mrs. Sanfana Ratanaphichetchai Independent Director and Member

of Audit Committee 500,000 4/4 2/4

Total 4,425,000
Remark: * Board of Directors’ remuneration consists of meeting allowances and gratuities

According to the resolution of the Annual General Meeting No. 1/2009 on April 24, 2009, the

shareholders approved the Board of Directors’ remuneration year 2009 for not more than Baht 5

2008

Total (Baht)

7,893,000
987,000
133,167

9,013,167



(2) Other Remunerations

- None -

Corporate Governance

The Company redlizes the importance to operate and manage the business in relation to the
good corporate governance in a firm and concrete manner. The Company has set the good
corporafte governance policy in order to increase the transparency of its operation and comply

with the principles of good corporate governance for listed companies.

In 2009, the Company implemented the good governance practices following the regulations
and the best practice of corporate governance for listed companies. There are five categories
as follows:

1. Rights of Shareholders
The Company readlizes the importance of the basic shareholder rights by operating
as follows:

1. The Company will send an invitation letter with adequate supports for
the shareholders in advance. The invitation letter has details and meeting agendas as
well as documents related to rules and regulations and opinions from the Board of
Directors. The proxy form and the map of the meeting place are also included and
the lefter notifies shareholders to prepare documents to be shown at the meeting
and used when exercising their rights and voting including the Company’s Articles
of Associations regarding the shareholders meeting. The shareholders can look for
information about the meeting rules and agendas on the Company’s website before
they get the invitation letter. Moreover, the Company will open for advance
registration at least two hours before the meeting.

2. Before every meeting, the Chairman of the meeting will explain the voting method
and the vote-counting method. The Chairman also informs the meeting the voting
result for every agenda.

3. The Chairman of the meeting has to arrange sufficient fime for the meeting and
manage it properly and transparently. During the meeting, the Chairman will give
chances for shareholders to express their opinions and ask questions before voting and
concluding the meeting resolution for each agenda.

4. The Company will disclose information to shareholders regularly through the Stock
Exchange of Thailand and the Company’s website.

5. The Company will provide minor shareholders with access to information directly via
electronic mail of the Company’s investor relation department.

6. The Company will operate with efficiency in building sustainable growth for the
organization and generating appropriate returns for the shareholders.
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2. Equitable Treatment of Shareholders
The Company emphasizes on providing fair and equitable treatments for all shareholders
as follows:

1. The Company will arrange the shareholders’s meeting following the sequence of
agendas notified in the invitation letter and having no policy to add more agendas
without informing shareholders in advance providing shareholders with enough time to
study details and related information in each agenda before making a decision.

2. The Board of Directors encourages the shareholders, who could not attend the
meeting, to appoint their power of aftorney to attend and vote for them. The
Board of Directors will provide an opfion to shareholders by nominating at least 2
independent directors for their choice as their proxy and using the proxy form on
which the shareholders are able to specify their votes. The Board of Directors
encourages the using of voting cards for important agenda items such as related
party tfransactions, acquisition or disposal of significant assets, etc. for the transparency
and be able to examine in case there is any argument later.

3. The minute of meeting is fo be made precisely before submission to the Stock
Exchange of Thailand within 14 days after the meeting which it will also be disclosed
via the Company’s website.

4. The Company shall outline the measures regarding information security and prevention
of insider trading in the Company’s corporate governance policy to create fairness for
shareholders. Director, executive, employee and staff are prohibited to trade, fransfer,
accept the Company’s share by using the Company’s confidential information and/or
inside information and/or to enter info any confractual agreement by using the
confidential information and/or inside information which may cause any direct or
indirect damages to the Company by prohibiting director, executive, employee and
staff to trade the Company’s shares for a period of 1 month prior to the release of
financial statements to the public. This prohibition includes their couples as well as

their minor children.

3. Role of stakeholders
= The Company redlizes the importance of role of stakeholders including shareholders,
% staff, trading partners, competitors, customers, the community, the society and the
)2 environment. Treatments for each stakeholder have been notified clearly in the corporate
r% governance policy which staff at all levels will use it as a guideline of their dufies and
é responsibilities.
A
e Shareholders : The Company is determined to take responsibility and to satisfy the
§ shareholders by making a sustainable growth and an appropriate return
% constantly along with fransparency in management and reliable accounting
E system.
z
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Customers : The Company will ensure customer satisfaction and confidence about
quality products and services at reasonable prices. It will build long-term
good relationship with customers.

Trading partners: The Company is concerned about fairness, honesty and mutual benefit
with its frading partners. Thus, the trading partners shall strictly comply with
related rules and regulations as well as have business ethics.

Competitors : The Company will follow rules of fair competition.

Staff : The Company considers staff as one of key factors for success. Staff will
feel that they have good working environment and friendly corporate
culture and this will promote a strong teamwork and staff confidence.

Community : The Company redlizes the responsibility to the community and society by

and Society considering the growth of the Company together with the development

of the community.

Disclosure and Transparency

The Board of Directors shall ensure that all relevant information, both financial and
non-financial, is disclosed correctly, accurately, on a timely basis and fransparently by
disclosing through the SET’'s channel and the Company’s website. Such information will
be consistently updated so that the investor and related party have sufficient and equal

information for the decision.

The material information both financial and non-financial that have to be disclosed

are as follows:

1. Annual statements (Form 56-1) and annual report
2. Corporate governance policy and the implementation of the policy
3. A statement of the Board of Directors’ responsibilities concerning the Company’s

financial reports presented along side the auditor report of the Company’s annual
report

4. Disclosure of the roles and responsibilities of the Board of Directors and other
committees, including the number of the meetings and attendances of each director

5. Disclosure of the remuneration of the Board of Directors and the management

Besides, the Company has set up the Investor Relation unit to communicate and
promote useful information to the shareholders, investors, analysts and general public
through various channels including analyst meeting, conference call, answer question through

phone and the Company’s website, etc.

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors
The Board of Directors is the key of the Company’s good corporate governance
practices. The Board of Directors should comprise of those who possess knowledge and

experience in the fields related to the Company’s business and wiling to contribute fime for
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Board of Directors’ structure

The Company’s Board of Directors comprise of 9 directors, of which 3 director are the
Company,s management and the remaining ¢ directors are non-management
including 5 independent directors according to the Company’s Articles of Association
which indicated that the Company shall maintain at least 5 directors at all time and
the good corporate governance of which at least 1/3 of the entire Board of Directors
have to be the independent directors.

The Company has clearly set term of service of directors to be in line with the
principles of good corporate governance for listed companies and regulafions of the
SET. At every annual general meeting, one-third of the directors shall refire. If
the number of directors is not a multiple of three, the number of directors closest to
one-third shall retire.

The Company clearly determines the qualifications of the Audit Committee; such
qualifications are more restricted than minimum qualifications specified by the SEC
and the SET.

The Company discloses details of each director in annual statement (Form 5¢-1) and
be able to see the details from the SET’s website (www.set.or.th)

The Chairman of the Board of Directors and the Managing Director are not the same
person and their roles and responsibilities are different. The Board of Directors has
clearly determined roles and responsibilities for both the Chairman of the Board and

the Managing Director.

The Sub-Committee

To have a careful and efficient consideration on important plans and operation, the

Company’s Board of Directors appoints sub-committees as follows:

The Audit Committee is appointed from at least three board directors and at least one
among them must be an independent director and have knowledge and expertise
on accounting and finance. The Audit Committee must have independence as
required by the announcement of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the
Stock Exchange of Thailand. The Audit Committee has a duty to monitor and
supervise the Company’s operation, financial statements and internal controls. It may
also consider the nomination of auditor, consider conflict of interests and manage
risks for the Company.

The Executive Committee is appointed from 3 board directors and has duty and
responsibility fo screen business plans and financial budgets which, then, will be
proposed to the Board of Directors. The Executive Committee will outline the
investment policy to suit the Company’s major policy. The Committee may work on

other tasks as assigned by the Board of Directors.

The Company has not set the Remuneration Committee; however, the Company has

set the preliminary consideration procedure for the appropriate remuneration by comparing
its remuneration amount with the comparable firms in the same industry together with the

Company’s performance.
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Roles and Responsibilities of the Board of Directors
The Board of Directors shall be responsible for their role in managing for the best

inferest of the Company. Role, duties and responsibility of the Board of Directors shall comply

with legislations, Company’s Articles of Association, resolutions of the shareholders’ meeting
and corporate governance principles. The Board of Directors shall perform with honesty,
intfegrity, responsibility and accountability, along with transparent disclosure of information.

It will supervise the management performance to meet the goal, maximize profits for

shareholders and also concern about interests of all stakeholders. To enhance the Company’s

strength and efficiency, the Board of Directors has active roles and duties as follows:

1. To contribute time and emphasize the importance of vision, direction and strategy
for the Company by jointly expressing opinions and gathering important information.
The Board of Directors will also consider risk factors to make sure that the management
is able to implement the Company’s business vision, direction and strategy for the
highest benefit.

2. To examine and grant approval on the Company’s important strategy and policy as
well as financial projections and business plans. The Board of Directors will regularly
follow up the management to work and implement all action plans initiated to meet
the Company’s business direction and strategy.

3. To establish the reliable accounting system, financial statements and auditing and
pursuing the procedure and assessments of internal controls efficiently and effectively.

4. To examine business risks which may happen in the future and carefully adopt risk
management policy. The Board of Directors will supervise the management to arrange
the efficient risk-management systemn and explore new business opportunities arisen
from the risks.

5. To examine and solve problems arisen from conflict of interests and connected
fransactions. The Board of Directors should consider major transactions which will
benefit the Company, shareholders and stakeholders the most.

6. To arrange the remuneration system for the Company’s executives to create incentives
tfo perform in both short and long term.

7. To evaluate the performance of the Managing Director regularly and proposing
remunerations for the Managing Director which is in line with the Company’s
performance.

8. To provide a channel fo communicate with each group of shareholders and fo
evaluate the information disclosure to ensure that it is accurate, precise, transparent
and highly reliable.

9. To have leadership and be a role model by complying with the Company’s corporate
governance practices.

Board Meetings
1. The Board of Directors shall set its meeting schedule in advance and notify each

director of the schedule so that each member of the board can manage time fo
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2. In 2009, there were 8 meetings of the Board of Directors which was appropriate to the
obligations and responsibilities of the Board and nature of the Company.

3. The Chairman of the Board and the Managing Director should set the Board meeting
agenda fogether and ensure that all important issues are already included. Each
member of the Board should be free to propose an issue for a meeting agenda.

4. Meeting documents should be sent to each director in advance of the meeting date.
The document should be concise, with all relevant information. Any confidential
issues should be brought to discuss during the meeting.

5. The Chairman of the Board should appropriately allocate the meeting fime for
complete management’s presentation and comprehensive directors’ discussion. The
Chairman should encourage careful consideration in the meeting.

6. The Board should have access to additional information, under a prearranged
condition, via the managing director, the company secretary or the executive
designated as a contact person.

7. Non-executive directors should be able to meet, as necessary, among themselves
without management tfeam in order for them to debate their concerns. The meeting

outcome should be nofified to the Managing Director.

Board Self-Assessment

1. The Board of Directors conducts the Board self assessment annually to discuss and
consider the performance and problem for further improvement. The topics of the self
assessment are clearly defined in order to be benchmark for performance comparing.

2. The Board of Directors assesses the performance of the Board as a whole and on

individual basis, such assessment shall be performed cautiously and carefully.

Remuneration

1. Board of Directors’ remuneration is comparable to the industry level in which the
Company operates; reflect experience, obligations, scope of work, accountability and
responsibilities and contributions of each director.

2. Remuneration of the Executive Committee, the Chairman of the Executive Committee,
Managing Director and top executives are in accordance with the principle and

policy as specified by the Board of Directors. For the best interest of the Company,

=

§ executives’ salaries, bonuses, and other long-term compensation should correspond
8 to the Company’s performance and that of each executive.

A

"% Board of Directors and Executives Training

E’Z 1. The Board of Directors encourages and facilitates fraining for all internal parties related
% tfo corporate governance such as directors, members of the Audit Committee,
& executives, the secretary of the Board, infernal audit department, SET’s coordinator,
;g etc. Training will enable them to confinuously improve their performances.

2% 2 New directors shall be provided with all documents and useful information to perform
)

their duties. Introduction to the nature of the business and the operations of the

company is necessary.
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3. The Board of Directors shall establish a development program for the Executfives.
The Managing Director and the Executives shall report to the Board in relation to
the operation result during each quarter for operation achievement according to the

target and objective of the Company.

Personnel
Number of Staff
As at December 31, 2009, the total staffs of the Company and its subsidiary classified by

each department are as follows:

Depariment No. of Staffs

Administration and Finance Department 70
Accounting Department 17
Internal Control Department 6
Sales Department and Affer Sales Services Department 336
Product Management Department 13

Total 442

Staff Remuneration
(1)  Monetary Remuneration

Staff remunerations (exclude executives remuneration) in 2009 and 2008 were as follows:

Type of Remuneration 2008

(Baht)
Salary 54,125,737 51,417,330
Bonus 1,701,970 1,818,133
Others (such as overtime, allowance, commission etc.) 25,496,302 24,962,352
Total 81,324,009 78,197,815

(2) Other Remuneration

- None -

Human Resources Development Policy
The Company supports and provides opportunities to all levels of employees to obtain additional
knowledge and capability in order to be suitable with their positions and assigned duties as well as for
the Company’s and their own developments in the future by consistently arrange fraining which can be
divided into 2 types as follows:
1. Internal Training which is trained by the supervisor or invite speaker in related business to share his
knowledge, experience and give advises so that the staff can be able to apply the knowledge
with his duty and responsibility. The inside training normally is arranged once in 1-3 months.

2. External Training which is held by the product owners such as AIS in order to educate the

AILINIT ANVAWOD DI19Nd NOILVIOdYOD ZML

Company’s staff to understand their products and services. The Company also provides other

frainings to increase its staff efficiency when appropriate.
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3.
4.
5.

Internal Control
At the Board of Director's Meeting No. 1/2010 on February 26, 2010, the Board of Directors

together with the Audit Committee had considered and assessed the sufficiency of the Company’s

internal control for five main areas as follows:

Organizational Control and Environmental measure
Risk Management Measure

Management Control Activities

International and Communication Measure

Monitoring

From the above assessment, the Board of Directors viewed that the Company has sufficient and

proper internal control system of five main areas including the adequate internal control system on
fransaction done with the major shareholders, directors, executives or related persons. Besides, the
Board of Directors encourages and supports the management to keep improving the quality on internal

conftrol system in order to obtain the Good Corporate Governance.
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Connected Transaction

The Company’s connected transactions in 2009 were as follows:

Related parties Relationship Details

(Million Baht)

1. Mr.Puftachart Managing Director ~ Guarantee on

Transaction
Value
Credit Line
30

Qutstandings
24.72

Necessity and Reasonableness

As at Decmber 31, 2009, the Company has
obtained a credit line from a local commercial
bank at the amount of Baht 30 million and was
guaranteed by a plot of land owned by
Mr. Puttachart Rungkasir. The Audit Committee
considered and viewed that the guarantee by
Mr. Puttachart Rungkasiri were necessity and
benefit to the Company as the Company
needs working capital for its business expansion
and such credit line enabled the Company’s
business operation to be more flexible.

0.58

The Company uses the commercial building at
18/1 Thetsaban-Songkhro Road for the total area
of 486 Sg.m. which owned by Mr.Puttachart
Rungkasiri as the Company’s head office and
the Company paid all the expenses occur for
employing this location such as electric, water
and telephone fees. The Company entered into
the rental agreement with Mr.Puttachart Rungkasiri
for 1 year during January 1, 2009- December 31,
2009 at the rental rate of Baht 48,600 per month
or equals to Baht 100 per square meter and the
Company paid all the expenses occur from
using this building. Such rental rate is the market
rate and comparable to the rate of the nearby
commercial building that the Company rents from
external individual at 18/2 Thetsaban-Songkhor
Road. The Audit Committee viewed that the
rental rate the Company paid to the renfer was
fair and reasonableness.

Rungkasiri and a major the Company’s
shareholder of the loan
Company
2. Mr.Puttachart Managing Director Rent
Rungkasiri and a major
shareholder of
the Company
3. F-One Auto Sport Mr.Puttachart and Rent of

Co., Ltd. (“F-One™) Mrs. Piyanuj

Rungkasiri, the

Advertising Sign

Company’s major
shareholders, are
directors and major
shareholders of
F-One by holding
at 99.99%.

The Company rented advertising sign of F-One
which located on Vipavadee Rangsit Road for
2 side, aft 15 meters height and 35 meters
width. Total area was 525 square meters at
the rental rate of 308,000. Baht per month for
advertising the Company’ products. The
confract was for 3 months from March 1,
2009-May 31, 2009. Such rental rafte is the
market rate and comparable to the rental
rate of the nearby advertising sign on the
same road, The Audit Committee viewed that
the rental rate the Company paid to the
renfer was fair and reasonableness.
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Connected Transaction Approval Procedure

The Company has set a procedure to enter intfo any connected transactions with any related
persons that the executives and the related persons shall not participate for the approval for any
mentioned transactions. The Company shall arrange the Audit committee to provide the comment on
the necessity, reasonableness, and price appropriateness of the fransaction by stating the conditions
to be in accordance with the normal business operation at the market price and be comparable to
others. In case that the Audit Committee has no expertise to review such connected transaction,
the Company will hire an independent expert or auditor to express the opinion for the fransaction
occurred in order to use for further consideration at the Board of Directors’ meeting or shareholder’s
meeting. In addition, the Company will disclose the connected transaction in the notes of the financial

statements audited by the Company’s auditor.

Additionally, the Board of Directors has to ensure that the Company abides by the laws governing
Securities and Exchange and rules, announcement, declarafion and regulations of the Stock Exchange of
Thailand concerning the informatfion disclosure of the connected tfransaction as well as the acquisition
and disposal of the assets according to the accounting standard set by the Federation of Accounting

Profession.

Policy for Future Connected Transaction

In the future, the Company’s related persons still has to guarantee for the Company’s credit lines.
However, the Company has no policy to request the related persons to guarantee for the Company’s
new credit line in the future. For the existing credit lines, the Company shall gradually release the
guarantee of the related persons by not affecting such credit lines. Besides, the Company might
borrow short-term loan from its related persons in case of any urgent or necessity matters as well as

enter into the rental agreement with the related person (Mr.Puttachart Rungkasiri)

If there are other connected fransactions in the future, the Company will follow the procedure

that has been set in the Connected Transaction Approval Procedure.
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Financial Analysis and Operation Results

Overview of operation results

The Company’s business has continuously grown since the establishment. The Company was the
first mobile phone distributors to open the retail shops in shopping center. In 1994, the Company granted
franchise from AIS to sell products and/or services under “Telewiz” license for 22 branches and
“Telewiz Express” for 4 branches. The growth of mobile phone industry together with the Company’s
capability on marketing strategies enables the Company to expand its customer base as well as its
coverage distribution channels. At present, the Company has 34 branches around Bangkok and
surroundings, 1 branch in Chiangmai, 1 branch in Konkaen and more than 500 dealers around Thailand.
Moreover, with the license of Service Dealer Center under “Mobile from Advance” made the Company
be a full service mobile phone center and has competitive advantage over other competitors. Besides,
the Company is the distributor of mobile phones “TWZ” and “NOKTEL”. The Company has imported such
products fromn China to distribute under its own brand names. The consumer acceptance in products
from China is increasing as the products are cheaper and provide various functions that can serve
consumers’ requirements. Moreover, the Company is the dealers of Wireless Device Supply Company
Limited, M-Link Asia Corporation Public Company Limited, United Distribution Business Company Limited
as well as purchases from other local distributors enable the Company to have variety of products to

serve all groups of customers.

(@) Revenues
The revenues of the Company and its subsidiary reduced from Baht 4,566.56 million in year
2007 to Baht 3,333.89 million in year 2008 or at the reduction rate of 26.99% and increased to Baht
3,647.00 million in 2009 or at the growth rate of 9.39%. Revenues in year 2009 consisted of sales
revenues, service revenues, sales promotion and others as the proporfion of 97.71%, 2.09%, and

0.20% of total revenues, respectively.

Sales and services revenues which were the main revenues of the Company and itfs
subsidiary consisted of sales of mobile phone, accessories, SIM card and refiled cards, revenues
from service center, revenues from AIS commission online and counter service fees, reduced
from Baht 4,413.96 million in year 2007 to Baht 3,251.39 million in year 2008 or decreased at 26.34% and
increased to Baht 3,563.59 million in year 2009 or at the growth rate of 9.60%. The sales and service
revenues in 2007 increased in consistent with the growth of mobile industry and the Company
also was appointed the sole distributor of Samsung mobile phone from Thai Sumsung Electrics
Co., Ltd. On September 2008, the Company tferminated the sole distributor agreement with
Thai Samsung Electronics Co., Ltd. as Thai Samsung Electronics Co., Ltd. did not comply with
commercial condition of the agreement. Therefore, the revenues in 2008 decreased significantly.
However, in 2009, the Company distributed more mobile phones, sim cards, refiled cards and
accessories as well as distributed more mobile phones under its brand names “TWZ” and “NOKTEL”
which obtained well accepted from its consumers as the price is cheaper and provide various

functions. Therefore, its revenues in 2009 increased from the previous year.
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Sales promotion revenues are revenues from mobile phones manufacturers and operators
of the Company and its subsidiary which decreased from Baht 128.86 million in year 2007 to Baht
64.00 million in year 2008 or the equivalent of 50.34% reduction and increased to Baht 76.11 million
in year 2009 or equivalent to 18.92% growth. The sales promotfion revenues increased in 2009
because the Company and its subsidiary received Baht 52.00 million from Thai Samsung Electronics
Co., Ltd. in order to settle all the conflicts between them and Thai Samsung Electronics Co., Ltd

and the Company readlized such amount as the income from sales promotion.

The other revenues of the Company and its subsidiary were Baht 23.74 million in year 2007,

Baht 18.50 million in year 2008 and Baht 7.30 million in year 2009.

(b) Cost of Goods Sold
In year 2007-2009, the cost of goods sold of the Company and its subsidiary were Baht 4,090.67
million, Bath 3,009.26 million and Baht 3,157.74 million, respectively. In 2009, the cost of goods sold
increased due to the increase in products distribution as mentioned earlier. The percentage of the
cost of goods sold to fotal sales revenues were 92.68%, 92.55% and 88.61% in year 2007-2009,

respectively.

(c) Selling and Administration Expenses
The Company’s selling expenses were Baht 99.48 million, 79.40 million and Baht 85.82 million in
year 2007-2009, respectively. The administration expenses (including the directors’ remunerations)

were Baht 157.56 million, Baht 139.08 million, Baht 137.81 million in year 2007-2009, respectively.

The percentage of selling and administration expenses to total revenues were 5.63% in year
2007, 6.56% in year 2008 and 6.13% in year 2009. In 2009, the percentage of selling and administration
expenses to total revenues reduced from the previous year even the Company spent more on
marketing activities to increase its revenues and expand its distribution channels as the Company

was able to efficiently control other cost of operation.

(d)  Net Profit
The Company’s gross profit margin in year 2007-2009 equaled to 7.32%, 7.45%, and 11.39%,
respectively. The gross profit in 2009 increased as the Company distributed more products under
its brandnames “TWZ” and “NOKTEL”. Such products have high gross margin, therefore, the

Company is able to increase the gross profit margin to the proper level.

=

§ In year 2007-2009, the Company’s operatfing profit margin equaled to 4.42%, 2.70%, and
)E 7.25%, respectively enabled net profits of the Company in year 2007-2009 were Baht 94.83 million,
c

; Baht 15.02 million and Baht 143.05 million, respectively or the equivalent to net profit margin of
-;

% 2.08%, 0.45%, 3.92% respectively. The net profit of year 2009 increased since the Company distributed
=

"é more products under its own brands “TWZ” and “NOKTEL” as mentioned earlier which enable the
§ Company to make good return in the long-term.

2 (e) Returns on Equity / Return on Assets

=

5 Returns on Equity of the Company and its subsidiary in year 2007-2009 equaled to 15.77%,
o

)

2.49% and 21.97%, respectively. The Company’s returns on assets were 6.27% in 2007 to 0.80% in 2008

and 6.78% in year 2009.
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Financial Status
(a) Assets
The total assets of the Company and its subsidiary were Baht 1,812.40 million, Baht 1,939.48
million and Baht 2,278.06 million in year 2007-2009, respectively, with the growth rate of 7.01% and
17.46%, respectively. The Company’s total assets at the end of year 2009 consisted of current assets
with the portion of 79.48% and non-current assets with the portion of 20.52%. The Company’s major

assets were summarized as follows:

Account Receivables (Net)

Account receivables of the Company and its subsidiary continuously grew because of
the business expansion from Baht 418.1¢ million in year 2007, to Baht 591.51 million in year 2008 and
Baht 596.15 million at the end of year 2009, or at the growth rate of 41.45% and 0.78%, respectively.
The account receivables of the Company and its subsidiary increased at the high rafte in 2008 as
the Company focused more on wholesale. The Company also has policy to provide credit term
30-60 days to its distributors who have regular sales volume and good payment record. Therefore,
the Company’s account receivables days increase from 30 days in year 2007 to 57 days in year
2008 and to 61 days in year 2009.

Inventory

The inventory of the Company and ifs subsidiary consisted of mobile phone handsets,
SIM cards, refiled cards and accessories at the total amount of Baht 971.67 million in year 2007,
Baht 717.22 million in year 2008 and Baht 884.54 million in year 2009. In 2007, the Company’s subsidiary
was appointed as the exclusive distributor of Samsung mobile phone in Thailand, it had to keep
sufficient stock for ifs distributors. In 2008, its subsidiary terminated the distrioutor agreement,
therefore, the inventory amount decreased. In 2009, the Company distriouted “TWZ” and “NOKTEL”
mobile phones which are the Company’s products Inventory. Therefore, the Company had to
keep more inventories for its distribution. The inventory turnover of the Company in year 2007-2009

equaled to 66 days, 100 days, and 93 days, respectively.

As of December 31, 2009, the allowance for decline in value and demode of inventory was
Baht 27.60 million in accordance with the Company’s allowance for inventory policy. The estimation
of the cost of merchandise return, computed from the rate of cost of merchandise sales by
average multiplied with the sales of merchandise which customers can return merchandise,

was Baht 23.15 million.

Advance Payment for Goods

Advance payment for goods is the payment in advance according to normal commercial
condition, which the Company agreed with manufacturers and mobile and accessories distributors.
In 2007-2009, the advance payment for goods of the Company and its subsidiary were Baht 1.47
million, Baht 139.80 million and Baht 216.57 million, respectively. The advance payment for goods

increased in year 2008-2009 because the Company purchased more products from its distributors
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Non-current assets

Non-current assets of the Company and its subsidiary increased from Baht 347.87 million
in year 2007 to Baht 417.61 million in year 2008 and to Baht 467.50 million at the end of year 2009 or
the equivalent of 19.19%, 21.52% and 20.52% of total assets in 2007-2009 respectively. The portion of
non-current assets is quite small in relation to fotal assets because the Company is in frading
business; its major assets are account receivables and inventories. Major Non-current assets at the
end of year 2009 consisted of building improvement, tool equipment, office equipment, office
furniture and vehicles at the amount of Baht 30.71 million, leasehold right at the amount of Baht
114.68 million, and fixed deposit at the amount of Baht 305.52 million, partial of leasehold right and

all fixed deposit were pledged as the guarantee for commercial bank’s credit lines.

(b) Liquidity

Cash Flow

In year 2008, cash flow from operation of the Company and its subsidiary was deficit Baht
(132.29) million due to the increasing of account receivables which was the result of sales increase,
the increase in advance payment for goods, the decrease of account payables while the
inventory decreased significantly as the Company terminated the distribution agreement with
Samsung. In year 2009, cash flow from operation of the Company and its subsidiary was deficit
Baht (64.09) million as a result of the increase in inventory and advance payment for goods as the

Company purchased more inventory in order to keep sufficient inventory for distribution.

In year 2008, the cash flow from investing activities of the Company and its subsidiary was
deficit Baht (84.37) million as a result of acquiring leasehold right from the State Railway of
Thailand. In year 2009, the cash flow from investing activities of the Company and its subsidiary

was deficit Baht (65.64) as a result of increasing in fixed deposit to pledge for its credit line.

In year 2008, the Company and its subsidiary got the additional bank overdraft and
short-term loan at the amount of Baht 227.78 million with the dividend payment at the amount of
Baht 34.00 million. Therefore, its cash flow from financing activities was Baht 221.70 million and
cash and cash equivalent item increased to be Baht 5.04 million. In year 2009, the Company and
its subsidiary got the additional bank overdraft and short-term loan at the amount of Baht 190.79
million with the dividend payment at the amount of Baht 24.00 million. Therefore, its cash flow

from financing activities was Baht 165.54 million and cash and cash equivalent item increased to be

=

t=)

% Baht 35.81 million in year 2009.

2 .

&S Current Ratio

"% Current ratio of the Company and its subsidiary in year 2007-2009 equaled to 1.22 times, 1.13
@

x?’s fimes and 1.16 times, respectively. The current assets of the Company and its subsidiary increased
% from both account receivable and advance payment for goods while their bank overdrafts
E and letter of credit continuously increased for more products purchase.

=2

2

=

5

o

)
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(c)

The cash cycles of the Company and its subsidiary in year 2007-2009 were 49 days, 88 days,
and 65 days, respectively. Cash cycle in 2008 increased due to the change to focus more on the
wholesale market. Therefore, the Company and its subsidiary required to stock more inventories to
be sufficient to serve all customers’” demand. Moreover, the Company provided credit term to its
good track record distributors. Thus, in 2008, the Company’s inventory turnover was 100 days while
account receivable turnover was 57 days and the account payable turnover was 69 days. In 2009,
its inventory turnover was 93 days, account receivable furnover was 61 days which closed fo
year 2008 but the account payable turnover increased to be 89 days, therefore, its cash cycle

decreased.

Source of Capital
Capital Structure Appropriateness

The total liabilities of the Company as of December 31, 2009 amounted to Baht 1,567.39 million,
increased 16.29% from year 2008. The increase in liabilities was due to the increase in bank
overdraft and letter of credit for product purchase. The Company’s shareholders’ equity equaled
to Baht 710.67 million in 2009, thus, the Company’s debt to equity ratio was 2.21 times, increased

from 2.28 times in year 2008.

Audit Fee
S.K. Accountant Services Company Limited was the office of the auditor of the Company
and its subsidiary for year 2009, the remunerations are as follows:
1. Audit fee
The Company and its subsidiary paid the audit fees to the office of the auditor for the year
2009 at the amount of THB 840,000 for the Company and at the amount of THB 120,000 for its

subsidiary.

2. Non-Audit Fee
The Company and ifs subsidiary have not received any other services from the office
of the auditor or person or entity that related the auditor and the office of the auditor during

the latest accounting period.

Person or entity that related to the auditor and the office of the auditor includes:

1) Spouse and children under support of the auditor

2) Juristic person that has control over the office of auditor, juristic person that is under
control of the office of auditor and juristic person that is under the same control of the

office of auditor both direct and indirect control

w

Juristic person that is significantly controlled by the office of auditor

IS

o
~— N

Partner or equivalent of the office of auditor

Spouse and children under support of person in (4)

o

Juristic person that the auditor, person in (1), (4) or (5) has significant contfrol power

over both direct and indirect control

AILINIT ANVAWOD D11dNd NOILVIOdIOD ZML

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 135




Good
Governance




Report of Audit Committee

Dear Shareholders

The Audit Committee of TWZ Corporation Public Company Limited as appointed by the Board of
Directors is entirely made of three independent members who meet the qualification as prescribed by

the Stock Exchange of Thailond namely:

1. Mrs. Wiwan Boonyaprateeprat Chairman of Audit Committee
2. General Surapan Poomkaew Member of Audit Committee
3. Mrs. Santana Ratanaphichetchai Member of Audit Committee

In fiscal year 2009, the Audit Committee attended 4 meetings with the Company’s management,
auditor and Internal Audit Department according to the relevant agendas to review the operation
performed within the scope of duties and responsibilities assigned by the Board of Directors. All minutes
of the meetings were submitted to the Board of Directors for acknowledgement. The dutfies and

responsibilities could be summarized as follows:

1. To review the accuracy of the quarterly and annual financial statements as well as the information
disclosure in the notes to financial statements.

2. To evaluate the adequacy of the internal control systemn and acknowledge the audit report
according to the annul audit plan of Internal Audit Department.

3. To review and ensure that the Company is operated in accordance with the laws, regulations of
the Stock Exchange of Thailand or any regulations related to the Company’s business.

4. To consider the Company’s information disclosure to comply with the related laws including the
connected fransactions and any fransactions that might cause any conflicts of interest.

5. To provide comments with regards to all aspects of business operation to its management through

the Board of Directors in order to increase efficiency in business operation.

The Audit Committee was of the opinion that in 2009 the Company performed in accordance
with the laws or related regulatfions with adequate and proper internal control system as well as no
material weaknesses. The Company’s financial statements were prepared with accuracy, completeness

and sufficiency in accordance with the general accepted accounting principles.
On behalf of the Audit Committee
L -
Mrs. Wiwan Boonyaprateeprat

Chairman of the Audit Committee

February 26, 2010

AILINIT ANVAWOD D11dNd NOILVIOdIOD ZML

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 137



AUDIT REPORT OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of TWZ CORPORATION PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

| have audited the accompanying separate balance sheets as of December 31, 2009 and 2008
and the separate statements of income, the separate statements of changes in shareholders’ equity,
and the separate cash flow statements for the year then ended of TWZ CORPORATION PUBLIC
COMPANY LIMITED and the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2008 and the related
consolidated statements of income, the consolidated statements of changes in shareholders’ equity,
and the consolidated cash flow statements for the year ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 of TWZ
CORPORATION PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED and its subsidiaries. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management as to their correctness and completeness of the

presentation. My responsibility is fo express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit.

| conducted my audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards
require that | plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of significant misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overadll financial statements presentatfion. | believe that my audit provides a reasonable basis for my

opinion.

In my opinion, the separate financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the separate financial position as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the results separate operations
and the separafte cash flow for the year then ended of TWZ CORPORATION PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
and the consolidated financial position as of December 31, 2008, the results consolidated operations and
the consolidated cash flow for the year ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 of TWZ CORPORATION PUBLIC

COMPANY LIMITED and its subsidiaries in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

S.K. ACCOUNTANT SERVICES COMPANY LIMITED
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BALANCE SHEETS

TWZ CORPORATION PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY

As of December 31, 2009 and 2008

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalent
Trade Receivables-Net
Inventories-Net
Other Current Assets
Advance for the Purchase of Goods-Net
Other Current Assets-Net
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Investment in Subsidiary-Net
Building Improvement and Equipment -Net
Leasehold Land and Land Development - Net
Leasehold Rights-Net
Intfangible Assets-Net
Other Non-Current Assets
Restricted Bank Deposit
Guarantee for Leasehold Rights and Services
Others Non-Current Assets
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS

Noftes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements.

(Note 7)
(Note 8)
(Note 9)

(Note 10)
(Note 11)

(Note 17)

CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December

31, 2008
Baht

SEPARATE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December

31, 2009
Baht

December

31, 2008
Baht

57,733,433.43
591,511,813.39

717,219,134.21

139,803,082.31

15,601,218.37

93,547,938.82
596,147,662.68

884,540,302.82

216,577,584.96

19,749,413.30

52,533,594.14
591,511,813.39

714,321,663.97

139,803,082.31

15,283,029.24

1,521,868,681.71

1,810,562,902.58

1,513,453,183.05

28,680,674.15
90,538,198.13
18,456,851.14

1,830,879.571

258,404,283.64
19,048,926.93

653,713.46

30,712,162.58
98,672,690.67
16,007,942.26

1,129,022.35

305,514,845.05
15,207,683.15

251,323.61

19,999,930.00
27,715,153.80
90,538,198.13
18,456,851.14

1,706,715.13

258,404,283.64
19,048,926.93

595,713.46

417,613,526.96

467,495,669.67

436,465,772.23

1,939,482,208.67

2,278,058,572.25

1,949,918,955.28
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BALANCE SHEETS

As of December 31, 2009 and 2008

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Bank Overdraft and Short-Term Loan
from Financial Institutions
Account Payables
Current Portion of Long-Term Loans
Current Portion of Liabilities under
Hire Purchase Agreement
Short-Term Loans from Subsidiary
Other Current Liabilities
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long-Term Loans-Net

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITIES
Share Capital
Authorized Share Capital

Issued and Paid-up Share Capital

Share Premiums

Retained Earnings
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LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITIES

Liabilities under Hire Purchase Agreement-Net

2,400,000,000 Ordinary Share @ Baht 0.10

2,400,000,000 Ordinary Share @ Baht 0.10

(Note 18,19)
(Note 21)
(Note 22)

(Note ¢.2)
(Note 20)

(Note 21)
(Note 22)

(Note 23)

§ Appropriated

3 Legal Reserve

E Unappropriated

@

= SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITIES OF THE COMPANY

»n

%3 MINORITY INTEREST

A

e TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITIES

§ TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITIES
&

=2

3

=

2% Notes fo the financial statements are an infegral part of these statements.

TWZ CORPORATION PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December

31, 2008
Baht

SEPARATE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December

31, 2009
Baht

December

31, 2008
Baht

1,263,044,365.31
35,923,033.29

27,000,000.00

991,532.18

15,313,177.15

1,453,838,820.48
37,615,475.71

27,000,000.00

1,574,156.27

40,804,908.62

1,263,044,365.31
35,923,033.29

27,000,000.00

991,532.18
10,000,000.00

15,304,043.96

1,342,272,107.93

1,560,833,361.08

1,352,262,974.74

4,000,000.00 3,991,345.57 4,000,000.00
1,594,184.95 2,564,408.83 1,594,184.95
5,594,184.95 6,555,754.40 5,594,184.95

1,347,866,292.88

1,567,389,115.48

1,357,857,159.69

240,000,000.00

240,000,000.00

160,253,272.55

20,400,000.00

170,962,573.24

240,000,000.00

240,000,000.00

160,253,272.55

22,100,000.00

288,316,184.22

240,000,000.00

240,000,000.00

160,253,272.55

20,400,000.00

171,408,523.04

591,615,845.79

70.00

710,669,456.77

592,061,795.59

591,615,915.79

710,669,456.77

592,061,795.59

1,939,482,208.67

2,278,058,572.25

1,949,918,955.28




STATEMENTS OF INCOME

TWZ CORPORATION PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY
For the year ended December 31, 2009 and 2008

CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December
31, 2009

Baht

December
31, 2008

Baht

SEPARATE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December
31, 2009

Baht

December
31, 2008

Baht

Revenues from Sales and Services 3,563,585,733.52

Cost of Sales and Services

3,251,390,749.08

3,559,358,758.60

3,242,746,819.00

(3,157,738,241.64) (3,009,258,689.47) (83,153,964,528.04) (2,987,558,820.09)

GROSS PROFIT 405,847,491.88

Income from Sales Promotion (Note 25,35) 76,111,479.68

Other Income 7,300,008.32

242,132,059.61
63,995,650.40

18,503,414.85

405,394,230.56
86,111,479.68

10,940,909.05

255,187,998.91
63,995,650.40

19,212,821.62

PROFIT BEFORE DEDUCTING EXPENSES 489,258,979.88

324,631,124.86
(79,404,730.51
(126,184,811.87

(12,893,667.00

502,446,619.29
(99,887,868.29
(123,005,902.31

(13,725,000.00

338,396,470.93
(77,203,272.48
(124,062,395.68

(12,893,667.00

)
)
)
)

(218,483,209.38

)
)
)
)

(236,618,770.60

)
)
)
)

(214,159,335.16

106,147,915.48

(74,072,723.13)

265,827,848.69

(73,017,212.26)

124,237,135.77

(73,915,637.31)

Selling Expenses (85,818,365.49)
Administrative Expenses (124,081,597.25)
Management Benefits (Note 26) (13,725,000.00)
TOTAL EXPENSES (223,624,962.74)
PROFIT BEFORE FINANCIAL EXPENSES

AND INCOME TAX 265,634,017.14
Financial Expenses (Note 27) (72,185,362.94)
PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 193,448,654.20
Income Tax (Note 28) (50,395,043.22)

32,075,192.35

(17,057,615.78)

192,810,636.43

(50,202,975.25)

50,321,498.46

(17,057,615.78)

PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD 143,053,610.98

15,017,576.57

142,607,661.18

33,263,882.68

ATTRIBUTED TO:
Shareholders of the Company 143,053,610.98

Minority Interest -

15,017,576.57

143,053,610.98

15,017,576.57

BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE (Baht)

Shareholders of the Company

Noftes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements.

0.01

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 141

AILINIT ANVAWOD DI19Nd NOILVIOdYOD ZML




For the year ended December 31, 2009 and 2008

Balance as of December 31, 2007
Profit for the Period
Dividend Paid (Note 24.1)
Legal Reserve (Note 24.1)
Balance as of December 31, 2008
Profit for the Period
Dividend Paid (Note 24.2)
Legal Reserve (Note 24.2)
Minority Interest

Balance as of December 31, 2009

(UKBsU)
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TWZ CORPORATION PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITIES

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Issued and Retained Earnings
Paid-up Share Appropriated Unappropriated Total Minority Total
Share Capital Premiums Legal Reserve Interest
Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht

240,000,000.00 160,253,272.55 | 16,500,000.00

195,844,996.67 612,598,269.22

15,017,576.57 15,017,576.57

70.00 612,598,339.22

15,017,576.57

- - - (36,000,000.00)  (36,000,000.00) - (36,000,000.00)

- - 3,900,000.00  (3,900,000.00) - - -
240,000,000.00 160,253,272.55 20,400,000.00 170,962,573.24 591,615,845.79 70.00 591,615,915.79

- - - 143,053,610.98  143,053,610.98 - 143,053,610.98

- - - (24,000,000.00)  (24,000,000.00) - (24,000,000.00)

- - 1,700,000.00 (1,700,000.00) - - -

- - - - - (70.00) (70.00)
240,000,000.00 160,253,272.55 22,100,000.00 288,316,184.22 710,669,456.77 - 710,669,456.77
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITIES

TWZ CORPORATION PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY
For the year ended December 31, 2009 and 2008

SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Issued and Retained Earnings

Paid-up Share Appropriated Unappropriated Total

Share Capital Premiums Legal Reserve

Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht

Balance as of December 31, 2007 240,000,000.00 160,253,272.55 16,500,000.00 178,044,640.36 594,797,912.91
Profit for the Period = - = 33,263,882.68 33,263,882.68
Dividend Paid (Note 24.1) - - - (36,000,000.00)  (36,000,000.00)
Legal Reserve (Note 24.1) - - 3,900,000.00 (3,900,000.00) -

Balance as of December 31, 2008 240,000,000.00 160,253,272.55 20,400,000.00 171,408,523.04 592,061,795.59
Profit for the Period = - = 142,607,661.18  142,607,661.18
Dividend Paid (Note 24.2) - - - (24,000,000.00) ~ (24,000,000.00)
Legal Reserve (Note 24.2) - - 1,700,000.00 (1,700,000.00) -

Balance as of December 31, 2009 240,000,000.00 160,253,272.55 22,100,000.00 288,316,184.22 710,669,456.77
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CASH FLOW STATEMENTS

TWZ CORPORATION PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY
For the year ended December 31, 2009 and 2008

CONSOLIDATED SEPARATE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Profit before Income Tax

Cash Flow from Operating Activities before Changes

December December December December
31, 2009 31, 2008 31, 2009 31, 2008
Baht Baht Baht Baht

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

193,448,654.20

Adjustment to Net Profit from Cash Receipt (Payment)

from Operating Activities

Depreciation Expenses 12,084,362.29

32,075,192.35

10,762,186.04

192,810,636.43

11,839,749.81

50,321,498.46

10,484,908.03

Amortization Expense of Leasehold Rights 6,218,441.05 5,522,883.37 6,218,441.05 5,522,883.37
Amortization Expenses of Intangible Assets 790,230.70 881,384.26 753,627.36 841,384.26
Amortized Expenses 2,616,217.64 2,018,043.73 2,616,217.64 2,018,043.73
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - Trade Receivables (Reverse)  2,302,457.00 (61,976.33) 2,302,457.00 (45,549.68)
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - Advance

for the Purchase of Goods (Reverse) (11,310.70) (35,185.56) (11,310.70) (35,185.56)
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - Other Assets (Reverse) 16,990.00 - 16,990.00 -
(Gain) Loss from Unrealized Foreign Exchange 191,108.59 261,418.68 191,108.59 261,418.68

(Gain) Loss from the Liquidation of subsidiary -
(Gain) Loss from Sale of Fixed Assets (654,203.61)
Loss from Declined Values of Inventories (Reverse) (2,405,052.79)
Loss from Obsolete Inventories (Reverse) 4,085,939.05
Reserve for Goods Retumn (Reverse) 3,237,438.94
Reserve for Cost of Retumed Goods (Reverse)

Assets Write-off

(2,252,383.10)
736,625.40

Interest Income (2,637,948.50)

Interest Expenses 70,380,420.15

Wirite-off of Inferest Expenses under Hire Purchase Agreement 154,507.97

(15,643,378.65)
(6,140,248.80)
(5,582,389.16)
11,194,439.10

138,841.43
(6,721,660.30)
72,130,217.14

195,913.98

(1,569,000.73)
(654,203.61)
(2,283,557.52)
4,243,910.90
3,237,438.94
(2,252,383.10)
(2,637,572.08)
70,380,420.15

154,507.97

(1,944,691.77)
(3,848,838.76)
(2,453,306.00)
11,184,910.48

138,841.43
(6,715,480.40)
71,973,131.32

195,913.98

288,282,493.68

100,995,681.28

285,357,478.10

137,899,881.63

Notes to the financial statements are an infegral part of these statements.
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) in Operating Assets and Liabilities

2

3 (Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivables (10,262,755.68)  (168,671,796.10)  (10,262,755.68)  (218,470,143.13)
E (Increase) Decrease in Inventories (166,729,671.77)  265,036,554.49  (169,926,609.13)  201,630,189.92
e

"2 (Increase) Decrease in Advance Advance

»n

8 for the Purchase of Goods (76,763,191.95)  (138,262,659.83)  (76,763,191.95)  (138,262,659.83)
0

LQ (Increase) Decrease in Other Current Assets (8,320,387.22) 3,207,881.08 (8,503,723.67) 29,188,190.03
S .

2 Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payables 1,588,344.28  (101,992,537.08) 1,588,344.28  (117,601,413.08)
o

E Increase (Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities 1,908,535.89 60,701.42 8,411,726.86 463,500.06
S

= Cash Flow from Operating Activities 29,703,367.23 (39,626,174.74) 29,901,268.81  (105,152,454.40)
5



CASH FLOW STATEMENTS

TWZ CORPORATION PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY

For the year ended December 31, 2009 and 2008

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (CONTINUE)
Cash Received from Interest Income
Cash Paid for Interest Expenses
Cash Paaid for Income Tax

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Cash Received from the Liquidation (Notes 12)
of subsidiary

Cash Received from Sale of Fixed Assets

Cash Paid for Building Improvement (Notes 13)

and Equipment
Cash Paid for Leasehold Land and Land
Development
(Increase) Decrease in Restricted Deposit
(Increase) Decrease in Guarantee for
Leasehold Rights and Services
Cash Paid for Intangible Assets
(Increase) Decrease in Other Non-Current Assets
Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase (Decrease) in Bank Overdraffs and Short-Term
Loan from Financial Institutions
Cash Received from Short-Term Loans from Subsidiary
Cash Received from Long-Term Loans
Cash Paid for Long-Term Loans
Cash Paid for Liabilities under Hire Purchase Agreements
Cash Paid for Dividend
Minority Interest Decrease
Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT INCREASE
(DECREASE)-NET
BEGINNING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT
ENDING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT

(Notes 7)
(Notes 7)

CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPARATE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December December December December
31, 2009 31, 2008 31, 2009 31, 2008
Baht Baht Baht Baht
4,597,266.91 6,954,661.79 4,575,162.62 6,951,780.95

(70,327,801.00)

(28,063,016.65)

(73,815,315.44)

(25,805,518.46)

(70,331,216.30)

(27,447,448.09)

(73,598,763.97)

(16,956,531.95)

(64,090,183.51) (132,292,346.85)

(63,302,232.96) (188,755,969.37)

1,375,113.48

(11,951,169.89)

(11,904,024.71)

(47,110,561.41)

3,841,243.78

(175,934.58)

289,951.49

(7,280,338.37)

(93,605,461.28)

20,190,983.97

(2,913,236.61)

(669,050.00)

(97,023.46)

78,288.25

654,205.61

(11,951,169.89)

(11,904,024.71)

(47,110,561.41)

3,841,243.78

(175,934.58)

344,389.85

(7,280,338.37)

(93,605,461.28)

20,190,983.97

(3,347,513.61)

(669,050.00)

(97,023.46)

(65,635,381.84)

(84,374,125.75)

(66,223,563.10)

(84,808,402.75)

190,794,455.17

24,704,940.61
(24,713,595.04)
(1,245,660.00)
(24,000,000.00)
)

(70.00

227,778,387.61

40,000,000.00
(9,000,000.00)
(1,075,494.00)

(36,000,000.00)

190,794,455.17

5,000,000.00

24,704,940.61
(24,713,595.04)
(1,245,660.00)

(24,000,000.00)

274,432,499.21

10,000,000.00
40,000,000.00
(9,000,000.00)
(1,075,494.00)

(36,000,000.00)

165,540,070.74

221,702,893.61

170,540,140.74

278,357,005.21

35,814,505.39

57,733,433.43

5,036,421.01

52,697,012.42

41,014,344.68

52,533,594.14

4,792,633.09

47,740,961.05

93,547,938.82

57,733,433.43

93,547,938.82

52,533,594.14

Notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TWZ CORPORATION PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY
December 31, 2009 and 2008

1.  General Information
The Company was registered as juristic entity in accordance with the code of civil and commercial
law on December 22, 1993, with juristic the registered No. (1) 2785/2536. Under the name of P.C.
Communication and Transport Co., Ltd. Then, on July 8, 2004 the Company changed its name to
TWZ Corporation Co., Ltd. and the Company became a public company limited on April 12, 2005,
with the registered No0.0107548000285 (formerly No. 0107574800285). Its head quarter is located at

18/1 Tesabal Songkrao Road, Ladyao Subdistrict, Chatuchak District Bangkok.

The Company and its subsidiary conduct business as sale and distribution agents of mobile
phones, spare parts and accessories, as repair center of telecommunication equipment and as
counter service for payment of service fee of GSM Cellular 900 and GSM 1800 system mobile

phones.

2. Basis of the Financial Statements Preparation
2.1 The Company has prepared the financial statements in accordance with Thai Accounting
Standards including related interpretations and guidelines promulgated by the Federation
of Accounting Professions, applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange

Commission and with generally accepted accounting principles in Thailand.

2.2 The financial statements mainly have been prepared on the historical cost basis except those

disclosed otherwise in the accounting policies.

2.3 In order 1o prepare the financial statements to comply with generally accepted accounting
standards, the Company’s management had to make some projections and suppositions
which may have an effect on the values of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and
also on the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities, therefore the actual result may

differ from the estimated values.

2.4 To be convenient for the users, English franslation of the consolidated and the separate

financial statements has been prepared based on the statutory financial statements that

§ are issued in Thai language.

5

E 2.5 The Company reclassified some items in accompanying financial statements for comparison
@

2 purpose in order to be in line with the present accounting classification and it does not have
@

2 any effect on net profit for the period or shareholders’ equities. The detail is as follow:

g

1=}

2

[
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2

=
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)
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Consolidated Separate

Financial Statements Financial Statements

As of As of
December 31, 2008 December 31, 2008
Baht Baht
BALANCE SHEETS
Trade Receivables-Net (Decreasing) (967,092.75) (967,092.75)
Trade Receivables - Subsidiary (Decreasing) - (4,625.17)
Others Current Assets - Net Increasing 541,092.75 545,717.92
Others Non-Current Assets Increasing 426,000.00 426,000.00
Consolidated Separate

Financial Statements Financial Statements
For the year ended For the year ended

December 31, 2008 December 31, 2008

Baht Baht

STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Cost of Sale and Services (Decreasing) (21,783,627.45) (5,793,530.47)
Selling Expenses (Decreasing) (1,376,459.18) (2,270,700.00)
Administrative Expenses Increasing (Decreasing) 12,474,827.62 (2,621,028.54)
Directors’ Remunerations (Decreasing) (8,955,000.00) (3,955,000.00)
Management Benefit Increasing 12,893,667.00 12,893,667.00
Inferest Expenses (Decreasing) (72,326,131.12) (72,169,045.30)
Finance Costs Increasing 74,072,723.13 73,915,637.31

3.  Adoption of Accounting Standards, Financial Reporting Standards and Accounting Framework

3.1

3.2

Revised Thai Accounting Standards and Thai Financial Reporting Standards and Revised

Accounting Framework which are effective for the current year. The Company applied these

following accounting standards, financial reporting standards and accounting framework

which were related to its business operation.

TAS 36 Impairment Assetfs (revised 2007)

TFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations
(revised 2007) (formerly TAS 54 )

Accounting Framework Effective on June 26, 2009

(revised in 2007)

Revised Thai Accounting Standards and New Thai Accounting Standards which are effective
for the period beginning on or after January 1, 2011 and January 1, 2012 which were not

early adopted by the Company are as follows:
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Effective on January 1, 2011
TAS 24 Related Party Disclosures (revised in 2007) (formerly TAS 47)

TAS 40 Investment Property

Effective on January 1, 2012

TAS 20 Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure

Government Assistance

These accounting standards, financial reporting standards and accounting framework have

no any significant effect on the Company financial statements.

Thai Accounting Standards were renumbered by an announcement, effective on June 26,
2009, of the Federation of Accounting Professions in order to be conformed to the numbering

system used in the International Financial Reporting Standards.

4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
4.1 The recognition of revenue

- Revenue from the sales of goods is recognized when goods was delivered to customer.

- Revenue from the sale of merchandise consignment is recognized after the deduction
of estimated allowance of goods return and sales discount.

- Revenue from service rendering is recognized when the service has already rendered
tfo customer.

- Revenue from the sales promotion is recognized on accrual basis after the approval
by vendor.

- Inferest income is recognized in accordance with the period of fime.

4.2 The recognition of expenses

- Expenses are recognized on accrual basis

4.3 Cash and cash equivalent
Cash and cash equivalent include unrestricted saving, current and no longer than three-

months fixed deposit bank accounts.

4.4 Trade receivable, Other receivable and allowance for doubtful accounts

§ Trade receivable and Other receivable are shown at net realizable value; while, Allowance
§ for doubtful accounts is estimated from aging evaluation of accounts receivable in
%E:. proportion of debt settflement received after the date of accounting closing as follow:

>

Q% Aging of Account receivable Overdue Rate of Estimated Doubtful Debt

% 1-90 Days 0.5%

§ More than 90 Days 100.0%

<

;é 4.5 Estimated Cost of Goods Return

zé Estimated cost of Goods Return is computed from sales volume which the customers
)

are entitled to return.
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4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

4.711

4.12

Inventories

Inventory values are realized at the lower of moving average cost or net readlizable value.
Additionally, the Company shall set aside allowance for obsolete inventories by calculating
at the higher of mark-to-market price or inventory aging value. Allowance for obsolete

inventories shall be established according to following criteria:

Aging of Inventories Rate of estimafte Allowance for obsolete inventories
181 - 270 Days 25%
271 - 365 Days 50%

More than 1 year 100%

Estimation of cost of goods return
Estimatfion of cost of goods return is computed by multiplying the average rate of cost of

sales with the sales volume, which is liable to the returning of goods from customers.

Investments in subsidiary

Investments in subsidiary are recorded by cost method.

Building improvement and equipment - Net
Fixed assets are recorded at cost on acquisition date less accumulated depreciation and
depreciation expenses shall be calculated with straight - line method using approximated

useful lives as follows:

- Building Improvement 5 Years
- Tool and Equipment 5 Years
- Office Equipment 5 Years
- Office Furniture 5 Years
- Vehicle 5 Years

Leasehold rights
Leasehold rights is recorded at cost and deducted by accumulated amortization and

leasehold rights shall be amortized in accordance with the lease period of each confract.

Infangible Assets
Soffware computer and program are recognized at cost on acquisition date and deducted
by accumulated amortization in accordance with the straight line method pursuant to

the useful life for the period of 5 years.

Impairment

The carrying amounts of the Company’s assets, other than inventories and trade
receivables are reviewed at each reporting dafte to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. An Impairment loss is recognized when the recoverable amount of an asset

is less than the carrying amount. The Company will recognize an impairment loss in the
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Calculation of recoverable amount

- The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s fair value less cost to sell and its
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assess-
ments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For any asset that
does not generate cash inflows which is mainly independent unit from other fixed
assets, the recoverable amount is determined in concordance to the related cash-

generating asset.

Reversals of impairment

- An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used fo
determine the recoverable amount.

- An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does
not exceed the book value, netting off depreciation or amortization. In case no
impairment loss had been recognized earlier, all reversals of impairment losses would

be recognized as other income in the statement of income.

4.13  The financial instrument
Financial assets which were shown in balance sheets composed of cash and cash at
banks, investments and accounts receivables. Financial liabilities which were shown in
balance sheets composed of accounts payable and borrowings. The accounting policy
of each item would be disclosed in separated notes. The Company entered into foreign
currency forward confract to mitigate foreign exchange rate risk. The foreign currency
forward contract will pre-determine exchange rates in the future when foreign currency
assets and liabilities become due to receive or pay. As on the reporting date, the foreign
currency forward contract will be computed to determine fair value and its detail shall
be elaborated in the notes to financial statements. In addition, gain (loss) actually incurred

from the foreign currency forward confract will be recorded in the statement of income.

4.14  Foreign currencies
foreign currency denominated transactions shall be converted and recorded in Thai Baht

with the corresponding exchange rate on the fransaction date; while, at the accounting

) closing date, the outstanding balance of assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
§ currencies shall be translated info Thai Baht with prevailing exchange raftes at the closing
E date and the Exchange Gain (Loss) from such franslation shall be recorded as income
@

2 or expenses in the income statement.

S

B

§ 4.15  Provisions

g Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a
o

‘g past event, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
p!

1§ will be required to seftle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
b}

o

)

150 s1goauUs:zdalU 2552



of the obligation. In case of reversal of provision, expected inflow shall be recorded
separately as an asset once there is potentially possibility of the receipts after the provision

has been paid.

4.16  Employees Benefit
The Company is recognized salary, wage, bonus, social security fund and staff provident

fund as expenses on transaction date.

4.17  Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share of the Company are calculated by dividing the net profit for the
period by the weighted average number of the issued and paid-up ordinary shares. The
Company did not calculate the diluted earnings per share because there are no common

share equivalents.

4.18  The appropriation of retained earnings
Appropriation of retained earnings is complied with the public company Act, B.E. 2535
and public company Act B.E. 2544 which the Company will appropriate as legal reserve

when it is approved by the Annual General Shareholders’ Meetings.

Basis of the Consolidated Financial Statements Preparation
5.1 The basic of consolidated financial statements were prepared according to the assembly of
only subsidiary under control of TWZ Corporation Public Company Limited, which held the

shares in subsidiary according to the following rate.

Name of Company Type of Business Percentage Juristic
of Investment Location
SAM Corporation Co., Ltd Distributor of mobile phone, 99.99 Thailand

accessories and wireless

products

5.2 Since the subsidiary has been liquidated on December 11, 2009, the Company shall
present the consolidated Income statement, statement of change in shareholders’ equities

and cash flow statement for the period of January 1, 2009 to December 11, 2009.

5.3 In the preparation of the consolidated financial statements, investment in subsidiary that
the Company held 99.99% of shares has been considered like the Company held the

100% of shares.

5.4 In the preparation of the consolidated financial statements, the Company has already

excluded all infer-company transactions.

5.5 Accounting policies of subsidiary in part of the same accounting transaction used the same

accounting policies as the Company.
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6.  Related party Transactions
During the accounting period, the Company had significant business transactions with its
subsidiary, related companies and related persons. Such transactions, which have been concluded
on commercial ferms and bases agreed upon between the Company, and related parties in
the ordinary course of business, have been summarized below:
6.1 Related Revenues and Expenses
Consolidated Separate
Financial Statements Financial Statements
Pricing Policy For the year ended For the year ended
December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2009 2008 2009 2008
Baht Baht Baht Baht
Inter-Company Transaction
with Subsidiary
(Eliminated in the Consolidated
Financial Statement)
Sales The market price, which - = (496,785.22)  1,9783,415.77
was nearly comparable
to the selling prices fo
others
Management Income At the rate of 2% of - = 75,553.32 717,838.02
sales
Sales Promotion Income Agreement Price - = 10,000,000.00 =
Revenue from Litigation Agreement Price - = 2,000,000.00 -
Gain from the Liquidation of Agreement Price - - 1,569,000.73 -
subsidiary
Purchases The market price, which - = 47,476.64  28,390,897.22
was nearly comparable
to the selling prices to
others
Sales Promotion Expenses Agreement Price - — 14,094,186.31 -
Rental and Service At cost - = 426,055.03 770,542.54
’;_D? Interest Payment The Interest Rate is - - 831,849.32 3,415.30
% MLR-1 Per annum
E Related Transaction with
>§ related Company
§ Billboard Advertising Expenses  Confract Price 924,000.00 462,000.00 924,000.00 462,000.00
Vé Inter-Transaction with related
2 persons
‘% Rental Contract Price 583,200.00 583,200.00 583,200.00 583,200.00
3
=
5
z



6.2

6.3

Related Assets and Liabilities

Other Accounts Receivable (Management Income)

Subsidiary

SAM Corporation Co., Ltd.
Other Accounts Payable
Subsidiary

SAM Corporation Co., Ltd.
Related Company

F1 Autosport Co., Ltd.
Related Persons

Mr.Puttachart Rungkasiri
Accrued Interest Expenses
Subsidiary

SAM Corporation Co., Ltd.
Shot Term Loan
Subsidiary

SAM Corporation Co., Ltd.

Balance of Beginning

Increase

Decrease

Balance of Ending

For the year ended December 31, 2009, Short-term loan from subsidiary is totally written off

against Other Receivable - Subsidiary.

As of December 31, 2009, short - term loan from subsidiary which was the loan in the form of
on demand promissory note with the interest rate of MLR-1 per annum of the average rate

from 4 major financial institutions.

Nature of Relationship

Name of Company

SAM Corporation Co., Ltd.

F1 Autosport Co., Ltd.

Mr. Puttachat Rungkasiri

Consolidated Separate
Financial Statement Financial Statements
As of As of As of
December 31, December 31, = December 31,
2008 2009 2008
Baht Baht Baht
_ - 4,625.17
- - 93,362.03
462,000.00 - 462,000.00
48,600.00 - 48,600.00
_ - 3,415.30

- 10,000,000.00 -
- 5,000,000.00 10,000,000.00
- (15,000,000.00) -

- - 10,000,000.00

Nature of Relationship

Subsidiary by Shareholding and Common Management
Related Company by Common Management

Director and Shareholder

AILINIT ANVAWOD DI19Nd NOILVIOdYOD ZML

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 153



7. Cash and Cash Equivalent
Consisted of :

Cash
Bank Deposit - Savings Account
Bank Deposit - Current Account

Total

8. Trade Receivables-Net
Consisted of :

Recourse Accounts Receivable
Accounts Receivable :
In due 379,327,189.00
Over due :
1 - 30 Days
31 - 60 Days
61 - 90 Days
more than 91 Days
Total
Less Allowance for Doubtful Debt
Estimated Goods Return
and Sale Discount

Net

0 (UHIsU)

Uaissu ania

o

fiduuanisa ADS!
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Consolidated
Financial Statement
As of

December 31,

Separate

Financial Statements

As of

December 31,

As of

December 31,

2008 2009 2008

Baht Baht Baht
2,205,949.70 1,138,839.66 2,205,949.70
16,290,313.76 7,664,882.02 16,120,282.82

39,237,169.97

84,744,217.14

34,207,361.62

57,733,433.43

93,547,938.82

52,533,594.14

Consolidated

Financial Statement

As of
December 31,
2008

Baht

Separate

Financial Statements

As of
December 31,
2009
Baht

As of

December 31,

2008
Baht

30,709,143.88

500,211,501.18

143,071,974.51
67,088,337.17
16,200.00

17,590.00

34,173,203.56

379,327,189.00

93,650,178.20

50,802.00

2,320,494.85

30,709,143.88

143,071,974.51

67,088,337.17
16,200.00

17,590.00

620,230,434.56

(18,486.70)

(28,700,134.47)

630,406,179.79

(2,320,943.70)

(31,937,573.41)

620,230,434.56

(18,486.70)

(28,700,134.47)

591,511,813.39

596,147,662.68

591,511,813.39

as collateral for credit facility from such bank in accordance with note No. 18.

As of December 31, 2009, the Company has transferred the rights to claim for the receipt of

payment from an account receivable in amount of Baht 55.38 million to a commercial bank,



9.

10.

Inventories - Net

Consisted of :

Mobile Phones and Accessories

Spare Parts for Repairing
Computers

Total

Plus Estimated Cost for Goods Return

Total

Less Allowance for Diminution in Value

of Inventory

Allowance for Obsolete Inventory

Net

Advance for the Purchase of Goods-Net

Consisted of :

Advance for the Purchase of Goods-Net

Less Allowance for Doubtful Debt

Net

Advance for the Purchase of Goods was the payment in advance according tfo normal

commercial condition, which the Company agreed with manufacturers and distributors of mobile

phones and accessories.

Consolidated
Financial Statement
As of
December 31,
2008

Baht

Separate

Financial Statements

As of
December 31,
2009

Baht

As of
December 31,
2008

Baht

719,934,737.34
1,182,106.40

1,142,468.78

886,298,415.87
2,345,055.13

345,513.29

717,880,268.76

1,182,106.40

722,259,312.52

20,894,661.43

888,988,984.29

23,147,044.53

719,062,375.16

20,894,661.43

743,153,973.95

(5,068,866.15)

(20,865,973.59)

912,136,028.82

(2,663,813.36)

(24,931,912.64)

739,957,036.59

(4,947,370.88)

(20,688,001.74)

717,219,134.21

884,540,302.82

714,321,663.97

Consolidated
Financial Statement
As of
December 31,
2008

Baht

Separate

Financial Statements

As of
December 31,
2009

Baht

As of
December 31,
2008

Baht

140,543,441.01

(740,358.70)

217,306,632.96

(729,048.00)

140,543,441.01

(740,358.70)

139,803,082.31

216,577,584.96

139,803,082.31
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11. Other Current Assets-Net

Consisted of :

Consolidated Separate

Financial Statement Financial Statements

As of As of As of

December 31, December 31, December 31,

2008 2009 2008

Baht Baht Baht
Purchase VAT to Claim 1,031,889.09 6,253,234.75 1,030,243.72
Accounts Receivable-Revenue Department 740,214.65 5,454,674.59 449,130.82
Prepaid Expenses 2,778,545.37 2,884,978.09 2,771,333.50
Accrued Revenues 6,404,435.80 2,511,794.15 6,404,435.80
Accrued Inferest Income 3,904,482.99 1,945,164.58 3,882,755.12
Others 1,288,761.62 1,263,668.29 1,292,241.43
Total 16,148,329.52 20,313,514.45 15,830,140.39
Less Allowance for Doubtful Debt-Accrued Revenues (173,906.93) (190,896.93) (173,906.93)
Allowance for Doubtful Debt-Others (373,204.22) (373,204.22) (373,204.22)
Net 15,601,218.37 19,749,413.30 15,283,029.24

12. Investment in Subsidiary -Net

Consisted of :

Separate Financial Statements

Cost Method Dividend
As of For the year ended
Paid-in Investment  December 31, ' December 31, December 31, December 31,
Name of Company Capital Ratio 2009 2008 2009 2008
Baht % Baht Baht Baht Baht
SAM Corporation Co.,Ltd. 20,000,000.00 99.99 - 19,999,930.00 - -

From the liquidation of the subsidiary, SAM Corporation Company Limited, on December 11, 2009,
as on December 30, 2009 the Company received proceeds from Investment of Baht 19.99 million.
After nefting off against loan and accrued interest from subsidiary at Baht 15.61 million and
Infer-company balance of assefts and liabilities at Baht 5.87 million, net cash received from

investment for the Company is Baht 0.08 million. So, total Gain for the Liquidation of Subsidiary

(UKBsU)

for the Company is Baht 1.57 million.
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13.  Building Improvement and Equipment - Net

Consisted of :

Separate Financial Statement

Balance Balance

As of Purchase Sale As of
December 31, December 31,

2008 2009

Baht Baht Baht Baht

Cost :
Building Improvement 7,259,012.37 1,451,715.30 = 8,710,727.67
Tool and Equipment 1,311,979.23 537,531.86 - 1,849,511.09
Office Equipment 15,186,936.81 1,555,185.13 - 16,742,121.94
Office Furniture 29,840,207.69 7,714,478.30 - 37,554,685.99
Vehicles 15,013,933.56 3,577,850.00 (3,975,981.31)  14,615,802.25
Total 68,612,069.66 14,836,760.59 (3,975,981.31)  79,472,848.94
Accumulated Depreciation :

Building Improvement (5,571,004.68)  (1,151,010.98) - (6,722,015.66)
Tool and Equipment (667,782.46) (257,570.33) - (925,352.79)
Office Equipment (10,584,889.62)  (1,952,748.29) - (12,537,637.91)
Office Furniture (14,745,204.86)  (6,097,750.63) - (20,842,955.49)
Vehicles (9,328,034.24)  (2,380,669.58) 3,975,979.31 (7,732,724.51)
Total (40,896,915.86)  (11,839,749.81) 3,975,979.31 (48,760,686.36)
Net 27,715,153.80 30,712,162.58

Depreciation as shown in statement of Income
For the year ended December 31,
2009 11,839,749.81

2008 10,484,908.03

- Separate Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2009, and 2008, the Company has vehicles under a

hire-purchase agreement in amount of Baht 2.89 million and Baht 2.25 million respectively.

As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company had assets with the depreciation fully
calculated but still in use which had a cost of Baht 18.28 million and Baht 12.7¢6 million

respectively. The net book value of which was Baht 318 and Baht 230 respectively.
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14. Leasehold Land and Land Development Cost - Net

Separate Financial Statement

Consisted of:

Balance Balance

As of Purchase Sale As of
December 31, December 31,

2008 2009

Baht Baht Baht Baht
Leasehold Land 88,300,000.00 - - 88,300,000.00
Land Development Cost 5,305,461.28 11,904,024.71 - 17,209,485.99
Total 93,605,461.28 11,904,024.71 - 105,509,485.99
Less Accumulated Amortization (8,067,263.15)  (3,769,532.17) - (6,836,795.32)

Net 90,538,198.13 98,672,690.67

Amortization as shown in statement of Income

For the year ended December 31,
2009 3,769,532.17

2008 3,067,263.15

According to the resolution of Board of Director (BOD) meeting No. 2/2008, dated February 27, 2008,
the BOD has approved the investment plan in real estate project by acquiring a leasehold rights
from a non-related company in order to entering a contract with State Railway of Thailand to
lease 6,126 square meters land. Later in the BOD meeting No. 3/2008, dated March 24, 2008, the BOD

has provided the ratification to approve the aforementioned lease.

The Company entered info an aforesaid direct leasehold contract with State Railway of Thailand
and the rights of leasehold has been completely transferred to the Company since March 11, 2008.
The value of fransferred rights is not higher than the official appraisal value which is evaluated by
market comparison approach and income approach according to leasehold appraisal report in

2005 by an independent appraiser, providing by the rights transferred company.

Leasehold rights consists of 2 leasehold agreements as follow;
- Land leasehold agreement for construction, commenced fromm March 10, 2008 until October
31, 2010 for the period of 2 years 7 months and 21 days. Additionally, on November 9, 2009;

State Railway of Thailand has approved the extension of construction period for another

?__ 1 year and 6 months, starting from November 1, 2010 to April 30, 2012.

=2

E - Land and property leasehold agreement, commenced from November 1, 2010 to August 14,
e

2 2031 for the period of 20 years 9 months and 14 days. Since State Railway of Thailand
o2}

é has approved the extension of construction period for another 1 year and ¢ months, this
2 leasehold agreement shall also be postponed to start from May 1, 2012 to August 14, 2031 for
1=}

E the period of 19 years 3 months and 14 days.

=2

e}

!

1§ Additionally, all property, built on the leasehold land, in any case would belong to the State
zg Railway of Thailand as soon as the beginning of construction or installation. The Company needs

to pay annual leasehold fee in utilization, according to both abovementioned leasehold contracts

158 s1goauUs:zdalU 2552



15.

16.

with State Railway of Thailand. Which the obligation of rental expense according to the leasehold

confracts in accordance with the note No. 32.3.

At present, such land has been approved for the construction from the State Railway of Thailand

and it is under construction according to the approved floor plan.

Leasehold Rights-Net

For the year ended December 31, 2009 as follows :

Separate Financial Statement

Balance Balance

As of Purchase Sale As of
December 31, December 31,

2008 2009

Baht Baht Baht Baht
Leasehold Rights 31,645,200.00 - - 31,645,200.00
Less Accumulated Amortization (13,188,348.86)  (2,448,908.88) - (15,637,257.74)
Net 18,456,851.14 16,007,942.26

Amortization as shown in statement of Income
For the year ended December 31,
2009 2,448,908.88

2008 2,455,620.22

As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company pledged a leasehold rights which has original
value of Baht 28.15 million with book value of Baht 14.11 million, and another leasehold right which
has original value of Baht 28.15 million with book value of Baht 16.16 million respectively, as collateral
for the credit facility fromm commercial banks and finance institutions as specified in the notes
No. 18 and No. 32.1.

Intangible Assets-Net

Consisted of :

Separate Financial Statement

Balance Balance
As of Purchase Sale As of
December 31, December 31,
2008 2009
Baht Baht Baht Baht
Application Program 4,303,552.36 175,934.58 - 4,479,486.94
Cost of accounting system design 360,000.00 - = 360,000.00
Total 4,663,552.36 175,934.58 - 4,839,486.94
Less Accumulated Amortization (2,956,837.23) (753,627.36) - (3,710,464.59)
Net 1,706,715.13 1,129,022.35
Amortization as shown in statement of Income
For the year ended December 31,
2009 753,627.36
2008 841,384.26

AILINIT ANVAWOD DI19Nd NOILVIOdYOD ZML

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 159




17. Restricted Bank Deposit
As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company pledged a fix deposit as collateral for the
credit facility from commercial banks and finance institutions as specified in the notes No. 18,

No. 21 and No. 32.1.

18. Credit Facilities Granted by Commercial Banks and Financial Institutions
As of December 31, 2009, the Company has received credit facilities from 9 commercial banks,
consisted of credit facility for letter of credit and trust receipt of Baht 930.11 million, for promissory
note of Baht 500.00 million, for foreign Exchange forward contract of Baht 240.00 million, for Bank
guarantee of Baht 80.00 million, for overdraft account of Baht 72.00 million, for long-term loans of
Baht 40.00 million and for factoring of Baht 50.00 million. These credit facilities were guaranteed by

the Company’s director and collateral as specified in notes No. 15 and No. 17.

As of December 31, 2008, the Company has received credit facilities from 7 commercial banks
consisted of credit facility for letter of credit and trust receipt of Baht 890.00 million, for promissory
note of Baht 500.00 million, for foreign Exchange forward contract of Baht 100.00 million, for Bank
guarantee of Baht 80.20 million, for overdraft account of Baht 82.00 million, for long-term loans
of Baht 40.00 milion and credit line of leased purchase assets of Baht 10.00 million. These credit
facilities were guaranteed by the Company’s director and collateral as specified in notes No. 15

and No. 17.

19. Bank Overdraft and Short-Term Loan from Financial Institutions

Consisted of :

Consolidated Separate

Financial Statement Financial Statements
As of As of As of

December 31, December 31, December 31,

2008 2009 2008
Baht Baht Baht

Bank Overdrafts 75,657,075.52 60,120,928.79 75,657,075.52
Trust Receipt 611,587,287.81 843,875,756.69  611,587,287.81
Promissory Notes 575,800,001.98 549,842,135.00 575,800,001.98

5 Total 1,263,044,365.31  1,453,838,820.48 1,263,044,365.31

=

2 The Company received these credit facilities from commercial banks as mentioned above.

S

= . . . .

&S Corresponding collateral is specified in notes No. 18.
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20. Other Current Liabilities

Consisted of :

Consolidated Separate

Financial Statement Financial Statements

As of As of As of

December 31, December 31, December 31,

2008 2009 2008

Baht Baht Baht
Accrued Corporate Income Tax 411,140.47 23,166,667.63 411,140.47
Accrued Expense 13,488,004.00 15,726,712.01 13,484,255.74
Others 1,414,032.68 1,911,528.98 1,408,647.75
Total 15,313,177.15 40,804,908.62 15,304,043.96

21. Long-Term Loans-Net

Consisted of :

Consolidated Separate

Financial Statement Financial Statements

As of As of As of

December 31, December 31, December 31,

2008 2009 2008
Baht Baht Baht
Long Term Loans 31,000,000.00 30,991,345.57 31,000,000.00
Less Current Porfion of Long-Term Loans (27,000,000.00)  (27,000,000.00)  (27,000,000.00)
Net 4,000,000.00 3,991,345.57 4,000,000.00

Changes of long-term loans for the year ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 are as follows:

Consolidated Separate
Financial Statement Financial Statements

2008 2009 2008

Baht Baht Baht
Beginning Balance = 31,000,000.00 -
Proceeds from Long-Term Loans 40,000,000.00 24,704,940.61 40,000,000.00
Long-Term Loans Repayment (9,000,000.00)  (24,713,595.04)  (9,000,000.00)
Ending Balance 31,000,000.00 30,991,345.57 31,000,000.00

The Company was granfed a long-term loan of Baht 40.00 million from a financial institution;
the outstanding balances of such loan as on December 31, 2009 and 2008 were Baht 30.99 million

and Baht 31.00 million, accordingly. The tferms and conditions of this contractual loan are as follow:

Total abovementioned long-term loan of Baht 40 million had the repayment schedule of 18
installments. Whereas, the first 17 installments were due to pay Baht 2.25 milion and the last

installment was due fo pay Baht 1.75 million. This secured loan was bearing the interest of MLR -1
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per annum. The first installment was due to pay on September 5, 2008. The collaterals of this loan
are presented in Notes number 17. However, on July 31, 2009, the Company was granted the

second loan to repay all outstanding principle and accrued interest of the first loan.

The second loan also has fotal credit line of Baht 40.00 million with the repayment schedule of 18
installments, the first 17 installments is due to pay Baht 2.25 million and the last installment is due to
pay Baht 1.75 million. This secured loan is bearing the interest of MLR -1 per annum and the first
installment was due to pay on September 5, 2009. The collateral list to this loan is as presented in

notes No. 17.

22. Liabilities under Hire Purchase Agreement-Net

Consisted of :

Consolidated Separate
Financial Statements
As of As of

December 31, December 31,

Financial Statement
As of

December 31,

2008 2009 2008
Baht Baht Baht
Hire Purchase Payable 2,800,824.00 4,491,996.00 2,800,824.00

Less Deferred Interest Expenses of Hire Purchase (215,106.87) (353,430.90) (215,106.87)

2,585,717.13 4,138,565.10 2,585,717.13

Less Current Portion of Liabilities under Hire (991,532.18) (1,574,156.27) (991,532.18)

Purchase Agreement

Net 1,594,184.95 2,564,408.83 1,594,184.95

23. Share Capital
For the year ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, authorized share capital and issued and paid-up
share capital have the movement as follows:

For the year ended For the year ended

December 31, 2009 December 31, 2008

162 s1goauUs:zdalU 2552

Par Value Number of Share Value Par Value Number of Share Value
Baht Shares Baht Baht Shares Baht
Authorized Share Capital
Common share atf the beginning 0.10 2,400,000,000.00 240,000,000.00 1.00 240,000,000.00  240,000,000.00
g of the period
5, Plus Increased Common Share = - = 0.10 2,160,000,000.00 -
E Common share atf the ending 2,400,000,000.00 240,000,000.00 2,400,000,000.00  240,000,000.00
_é of the period
% Issued and Paid-up Share Capital
@ (Full Amount)
g Common share atf the beginning 0.10 2,400,000,000.00 240,000,000.00 1.00 240,000,000.00  240,000,000.00
‘% of the period
é Plus Increased Common Share = - = 0.10 2,160,000,000.00 -
= Common share af the ending 2,400,000,000.00 240,000,000.00 2,400,000,000.00  240,000,000.00
2% of the period



24.

25.

26.

27.

Refer to the minutes of Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders No. 1/2008 on June 20, 2008,
the meeting was unanimously approved to change the Company common share par value Baht
1.00 per share to Baht 0.10 per share. This resolution caused the numbers of shares registered to
change. The Company registered share capital formerly was Baht 240.00 million, divided info 240
million common shares with par value of Baht 1.00 per share. Now the Company registered share
capital shall still be Baht 240.00 million, which would be divided into 2,400 million common shares

with par value of Baht 0.10 per share.

Dividend Paid and Legal Reserve

24.1 In accordance with the minutes of the Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting No. 1/2008
held on April 25, 2008, it was unanimously resolved to pay cash dividend of Baht 0.15 per share
for totally 240 million shares, which is amounting to Baht 36.00 million and also to appropriate

Baht 3.90 million for legal reserve.

24.2 In accordance with the minutes of the Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting No. 1/2009
held on April 24, 2009, it was unanimously resolved to pay cash dividend Baht 0.01 per share
for totally 2,400 million shares, which is amounting to Baht 24.00 million and also to appropriate

Baht 1.70 million for legal reserve.

Income from Sales Promotion
The Company and its subsidiary got sales Promotion Income from the mobile network provider

and the manufacturers of mobile phones and accessories to promote sales and distribution.

Management Benefits

Management benefits represent the benefits paid to the Company’s management and directors,
including monetary benefits such as salaries and related benefit and directors’ remuneration and
other forms of benefits. The Company’s management is the persons who are defined under the

Securities and Exchange Act.

Financial Expenses

Consists of :
Consolidated Financial Statements Separate Financial Statements
For the year ended For the year ended
December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2009 2008 2009 2008
Baht Baht Baht Baht
Bank Charges 2,482,284.14 1,746,592.01 2,482,284.14 1,746,592.01
Interest Expenses 69,703,078.80 72,326,131.12 70,534,928.12 72,169,045.30
Total 72,185,362.94 74,072,723.13 73,017,212.26 73,915,637.31
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28. Income Tax

debt efc.

29. Expenses by Nature

Consisted of :

Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods
Gain (Loss) in Value of Inventories
Purchase Inventories and Other Expenses
Employee Benefit Expenses
Depreciation12,084,362.29

Amortized Leasehold Rights

Amortized Intangible Assets

Amortization Expenses

Operating and Service Lease Expenses
Sales Promotion Expenses

Management Benefit Expenses

Other Expenses

Total

w
e

0 (UHIsU)
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o
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For the year ended on December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company computed the corporate
income tax by the rate of 25% of accounting profit respectively, after adding back adjusted
fransactions in accordance with the revenue code, consisted of estimates for goods return,

loss from diminution in value of inventories, obsolete inventories, forbidden expenses and doubftful

For the Period between January 1, 2009 to December 11, 2009, and for the year ended on
December 31, 2008, the subsidiary calculated corporate income tax by the rate of 30% of
accounting profit respectively, after adding back adjusted transactions in accordance with

the revenue code, consisted of forbidden expenses etc.

Consolidated Financial Statements Separate Financial Statements

For the year ended For the year ended

December 31, December 31, = December 31, December 31,
2009 2008 2009 2008
Baht Baht Baht Baht

(166,729,671.77)  265,036,554.49  (169,926,609.13)  201,630,189.92
1,660,886.26  (21,783,627.45) 1,960,353.38 (5,793,530.47)
3,322,807,027.15 2,766,005,762.43  3,321,930,783.79  2,791,722,160.64

83,986,445.39 83,056,906.52 83,986,445.39 87,851,976.52

10,762,186.10  11,839,749.81 10,484,908.03
6,218,441.05 5,522,883.37 6,218,441.05 5,522,883.37
790,230.10 881,384.26 753,627.36 841,384.26
2,616,217.64 2,018,043.73 2,616,217.64 2,018,043.73

46,054,858.62  45,056,910.59 45,634,688.59 44,799,637.82
10,350,769.69 8,011,645.31 24,444,956.00 6,307,217.31
13,725,000.00  12,893,667.00 13,725,000.00 12,893,667.00

47,798,637.96 50,279,582.50 47,399,644.76 43,439,617.12

3,381,363,204.38 3,227,741,898.85  3,390,583,298.64 3,201,718,155.25

Presentation of Finance Data Segregated by Business Sector

The Company conducts business as sale and distribution agents of mobile phones, spare parts
and accessories, as repair center of telecommunication equipment and as counter service for
payment of service fee of GSM Cellular 900 and GSM 1800 system mobile phones. Its subsidiary
also is distributing agent of mobile phones, accessories and wireless product. The Company and
the subsidiary company operate in one geographical sector, Thailond. Thus all revenues, profifs

as show on the financial statement were related to the business sector and geographical sector



31.

For the year ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company has sales income from domestic

and overseq, as follow:

Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended December 31, 2009 and 2008

Revenue Sales and Services

Domestic Sales Foreign Sales Total

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht

Revenue from Sales and 3,557.93 3,241.96 5.66 9.43 3,563.59 3,251.39
Services

Cost of Sales and Services (3,153.15) (2,991.80) (4.59) (17.46) (3,157.74) (3,009.26)

Gross Profit 404.78 250.16 1.07 (8.03) 405.85 242.13

Assets presented in financial statements, classified by business segment are as follows:

Consolidated Separate

Financial Statement Financial Statement
As of As of

December 31, 2008 December 31, 2009

Baht Baht
Communication Equipment Trading Segment 1,848,944,010.54 2,179,385,881.58
Real Estate Development Segment 90,538,198.13 98,672,690.67
1,939,482,208.67 2,278,058,572.25

Financial Instruments
31.1  Policy of Financial Risk Management
The Company and Subsidiary has no policy to hold or issue financial instruments for

speculation or for commercial operation.

31.2  Inferest Rafe Risk
The interest rate risk derives from the change of infterest rates in the future which will affect
the results of the Company and subsidiary operations and their cash flows. The Company

and subsidiary have assets and liabilities which may have interest rate risk as follows:

Consolidated Financial Statement

Amount Annual Interest Rate
As of As of

December 31, 2008 December 31, 2008

Million Baht %
Restricted Bank Deposit 258.40 1.50-4.00
Bank Overdrafts from Financial Institutions 75.66 MOR
Trust Receipt Payables 611.59 5.65-9.00
Promissory Notes 575.80 6.75-7.25
Long-Term Loans 31.00 MLR-1

AILINIT ANVAWOD DI19Nd NOILVIOdYOD ZML

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 165




Separate Financial Statements

Amount Annual Interest Rate
As of December 31 As of December 31
2009 2008 2009 2008

Million Baht Million Baht % %
Restricted Bank Deposit 305.51 258.40 0.50-4.00 1.50-4.00
Bank Overdrafts from Financial Institutions 60.12 75.66 MOR MOR
Trust Receipt Payables 843.88 611.59 5.00-6.85 5.65-9.00
Promissory Notes 549.84 575.80 5.375-5.872 6.75-7.25
Short-Term Loans from Subsidiary = 10.00 = MLR-1
Long-Term Loans 30.99 31.00 MLR-1 MLR-1

31.3 Exchange Rate Risk
All exchange rate risk of the Company derived from the obligation to pay foreign currency

for imported goods. However, the Company had the policy to mitigate such risks by entering

December 31, 2008

info forward contract of foreign currency as follows:

Value of Foreign Exchange Forward Contract (Million USD) 1.63
Value of Foreign Exchange Forward Contract (Million Baht) 56.93
Fair Value of Foreign Exchange Forward Confract (Million Baht) 56.92

32. Obligations and Contingent Liabilities
32.1  Apart from liabilities as shown in financial statements, the Company still has an obligation

As of As of

December 31, 2009 December 31, 2008

with bank as follows:

Million Baht Million Baht
Letter of Guarantee 12.37 12.37
Letter of Credit /Trust Receipt (Unused) 296.67 202.61

32.2 The Company guaranteed and shared indebtedness in the credit facilities of the subsidiary

with Commercial banks as follows:

=

2

i As of
=2

RS December 31, 2008
c

e Million Baht
=

-

b The 1 Commercial Bank 90.00
@

‘% The 2" Commercial Bank 50.00
<

s The 3" Commercial Bank 400.00
s
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32.3 Lease Contract Obligations - State Railway of Thailand
As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company entered intfo 2 leasehold contracts with
State Railway of Thailand as presented in the notes No.14, whereas the Company holds

rights fo renew such contract.

The aggregate minimum amount of lease payments in the future under non-cancellable

lease agreements and services agreements are as follows:

As of As of

December 31, 2009 December 31, 2008

‘000 Baht ‘000 Baht
Less than 1 year 2,749 2,618
More than 1 year but less than 5 years 12,441 11,849
More than 5 years 107,298 110,639
Total 122,488 125,106

32.4 Lease Contract Obligations - Other
As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company and subsidiary entered into 88 and 96 lease
contracts respectively, with various durations from 1 year to 25 years whereas the Company

holds rights fo renew such contract.

The aggregate minimum amount of lease payments in the future under non-cancellable

leases agreements and services agreements are as follows:

Consolidated Separate

Financial Statement Financial Statements

As of As of As of

December 31, 2008 December 31, 2009 = December 31, 2008

‘000 Baht ‘000 Baht ‘000 Baht
Less than 1 year 28,054 28,095 28,000
More than 1 year but
less than 5 years 27,314 31,987 27,307
More than 5 years 3,890 2,278 3,890
Total 59,258 62,360 59,197

32.5 Obligations as the Contract of consfruction
As of December 31, 2009, the Company has obligatfions for the future aggregate construction

payment under construction agreements in the amount of Baht 18.50 million.

33. Important Contract and Agreement
33.1 The distributor appointment contract with Digital Phone Co., Ltd.
As of September 9, 2002, the Company entered into the contract with Digital Phone Co., Ltd.

The Company was appointed as “distributor agent” of mobile phone sim card of Digital GSM
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1800 system, instant set of mobile phone accessories including any products which will be
additionally determined during the contract life while the confract is effective from the

contractual date onwards.

33.2 The Service Center operating agent Contract with Digital Phone Co., Ltd.
As of December 1, 2002, the Company entered intfo the contract with Digital Phone Co., Ltd.
Both parties agreed that the Company was “Service Provider” of after sale service, who was
providing the maintenance, repair, inspection and distribution of equipment spare parts
and additional services for mobile phone and equipments whereas the Company would
be informed from time by time during this contract life. This contract would last for the period
of 1 year commenced from the contractual date. In case there was no breach of covenants
during the contractual term; then, by the end of contract, there was no fermination from
Digital Phone Co., Ltd. So, this contract is further enforceable for another 1 year commend

from the date the contract is due in each time.

33.3 Contract of service rendered of data Information with the phone voice
As of February 1, 2003, the Company conducted the contract of service rendered of
information via phone voice with 108 1900 Audio text Co., Ltd.. The Company has to proved
service in respect of the Download Ring tone (voice entry to mobile phone) and service in
respect of the Download Pictures, Picture Message, Screen Saver and Text SMS which is
determined the period of 1 year commend from the contract date. Moreover, contract life
can be automatically renewed in form of month by month after the termination of the

contract in accordance with the above specified.

33.4 Confract of Joint business service
As of April 29, 2003, the Company conducted the contract of joint business service with
M shop Mobile Co., Ltd. while the Company consfitutes right to use trademark and
symbol namely “M Shop” and as distributor of goods in accordance with the volume and
price including the service rendered affer sale in the installation maintenance repairing
goods and equipment which M Shop Mobile Co., Ltd. addifionally notified during this
contract life. The term is the absolute sales and distribution between the Company and

M Shop Mobile Co., Ltd. However, the confract is determined by the period of 3 years

§ commenced from the confractual date in the event of fermination of this Contract if the
Z party who gefts rights performs strictly according to the regulations under this contract and
; the party who gives rights do not want to cancel confract, this contract will be automatically
->§ renewed for further periods of 3 years from the termination of the Confract.

- 33.5 The contract to grant the right to sell products and service

E As of August 10, 2004, the Company received right in accordance with the contract to grant
;g right fo sell products and service from Advance Info Service Public Co., Ltd.. Whereby
;% Advance Info Service Public Co., Ltd. agreed that the Company receives right and various
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34.

35.

privileges in the system of product distribution, service rendered, compensation in the receipt
of service repayment and register and the receipt of mobile phone service fee and other
compensations in accordance with the basis, term and rate which Advance Info Service

Public Co., Ltd. is determined and this contract is enforceable from January 1, 2001, onwards.

Moreover, the Company operates its business apart from the confract of the right granted
to sell products and such service. However, the Company received a confirm lefter from
right granter that the Company business operation is not breach the term in accordance

with the contract of such right granted.

33.6 The confract to appoint distributor with Amoi Electronics Co., Ltd.
As of May 15, 2006, the Company was appointed as distributor of goods with Amoi Electronics
Co., Lid.,, the goods mean mobile phones and electronic products. The Agreement is
effective from September 15, 2006 for a period of 2 years which shall be automatically
renewed for further periods of one year each affer termination of the mutual agreement

as mentioned above.

33.7 The agreement to grant the right to sell products
The Company was appointed as a distributor of Haier's product which cover consumer

electric appliances, mobile phones and IT products on May 29, 2006.

33.8 The contract to appoint distributor with Motorola Electronics Pte.Ltd.
As of September 1, 2007, the Company was appointfed as distributor of goods with Motorola
Electronics Pte.Ltd., the goods mean mobile phones and accessories of Motorola. The Agreement
is effective from September 1, 2007 and shall expire on August 31, 2009. Thereafter this

agreement may be extended by mutual agreement and writing.

Provident fund

The Company has established a provident fund in accordance with the Provident Fund Act B.E.
1987. The fund is contributed by both employees and the Company in the rate of 2% of salary.
The fund is managed by the AIA Provident fund and will be paid to an employee upon termination

in accordance with the rules of the Company’s staff provident fund.

For the year ended on December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company contribution is repayable to the

provident fund Baht 0.5¢6 million and Baht 0.60 million respectively.

Lawsuit

The Company and its subsidiary have filed 2 criminal cases and one civil case with the executives
of Thai Samsung Electronics Co., Ltd. and Thai Samsung Electronics Co., Ltd., tofaling 5 persons
for a joint charge of fraud, breach of contfract and violation of trade secrets. The civil claim

damages are approximately Baht 10,184.09 million.
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4 executives of the Company and ifs subsidiary executives were filed for 2 criminal cases and a civil
case from Thai Samsung Electronics Co., Ltd. for a joint charge of false statements and violating.

The civil claim damages are approximately Baht 857.78 million.

However, on August 14, 2009 Thai Samsung Electronics Co., Ltd., the Company and its subsidiary
agreed to settle all the conflicts. Thai Samsung Electronics Co., Ltd. agreed to pay the amount of
Baht 52.00 million and the Company received the payment on August 19, 2009. The Company

readlized such amount as the income from sales promotion.

36. Event after the Financial Statements
According to the minutes of Board of Directors’s meeting No. 1/2010, dated February 26, 2010,
material resolutions of the meeting are as follows;
36.1  Propose to shareholders’ meeting for an approval of the year 2009 dividend payment of Baht
60.00 million at the rate of Baht 0.025 per share to the shareholders of total 2,400 million shares

and the allocation of Baht 1.90 milion from the Company’s 2009 net profit for legal reserve.

36.2 Propose to shareholders’ meeting for an approval of the issuance of 600 million units of

warrants for existing shareholders of the Company according to shareholding portion.

36.3 Propose to shareholders’ meeting for an approval of the increase of the Company share
registered by Baht 60.00 million, which 600 million common shares shall be issued at par
value of Baht 0.10 (ten satang) per share. The Company share registered shall increase
from Baht 240.00 million to Baht 300.00 million, consists of 3,000 million shares at par value of

Baht 0.10 (fen satang) per share.

36.4 Propose to shareholders’ meeting for an approval of the reserve of 600 milion newly
issued common shares for the exercise of above said warrants with the conversion ratio of
4 common shares fo 1 unit of warrant at the exercise price of Baht 0.90 (ninety satang)

per share.

37.  Approval of the Financial Statements
These inferim financial statements have been approved to issue by the Company’s board of

directors on February 26 , 2010.
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